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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery
and diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment
portfolio including property investment and development
and other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has production plants in Hong Kong and China.
The Group has full capabilities in jewellery design, direct
stone sourcing, stone cutting, lapidary, alloying and gold
refining. The management of the Group is known for its
commitment to quality, and its finished products are visible
testaments to that commitment.

The Group has fully-integrated diamond cutting and
polishing facilities in China. With around 900 skilled workers,
our facilities are best known for their quality and ability to
handle diamond cutting works on a wide range of products.
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Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP

Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2009.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial year ended 30 June 2009 the Group achieved a
turnover of HK$1.190 billion (2008: HK$1.498 billion). Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$136
million (2008: HK$83 million) and earnings per share was
HK44.5 cents (2008: HK29.8 cents).

The financial year of 2008-2009 has been a challenging
year. Starting with the outbreak of the financial tsunami in
the United States, the effects slowly trickled down to other
countries worldwide. Overall, this year has been a period of
adjustment and caution for the industry. Earlier in the year
the impact from the weakening macro-environment has
resulted in weaker consumer purchasing patterns leading
onto a softening of sales. As a result, both the American and
European markets reflected a decrease in sales of 2009.
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As a group, we continue to diversify our business activities
and investments. In the financial year of 2009, we have
re-positioned our real estate portfolio through the sale of
Continental Diamond Plaza. The transaction was completed
on 16 October 2009. The disposal of Continental Diamond
Plaza generated positive income and adequate cash to the
Group. Subsequently the Board has proposed to distribute a
special dividend of HK$0.30 per ordinary share. The dividend
was based on careful consideration of not affecting the daily
operational expenses, Company's liquidity and cash flow.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In the near future, we foresee there will be quite sometime
before the luxury goods consumption on a worldwide level
begins to pick up. The Group will continue to implement
prudent measures to tighten our credit control, currency
exposure, and risk management. We remain cautious yet
optimistic towards the future outlook of the industry. Going
forward, our Group maintains vigilant in identifying sound
investments and other business opportunities.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2009, the Group had a moderate gearing
ratio of 0.39 (2008: 0.28), which is calculated on net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of bank and other borrowings less cash and
bank balances. Total cash and cash equivalents were
HK$45,759,000 (2008: HK$128,868,000) which were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar and
British Pound, while bank loans were HK$682,896,000
(2008: HK$463,279,000) which were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi and other borrowings
in respect of promissory note were HK$42,000,000 (2008:
Nil) which were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. The
movement in bank loans represent mainly the acquisition
of a property under development. These bank loans are
secured by first legal charges over the Group’s investment
property classified as held for sale, certain leasehold land and
buildings, property under development, assignment of rental
income of an investment property classified as held for sale
and corporate guarantees executed by the Company.
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In line with the Group’s prudent financial management, the
directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its operational requirements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2009, the Group’s investment property
classified as held for sale, certain leasehold land and
buildings and property under development with an
aggregate net book/carrying value of HK$1,255,275,000
(2008: HK$776,972,000) were pledged to certain banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in local Hong
Kong Dollar and Renminbi. Interest is determined on the
basis of Hong Kong Inter-bank Offering Rate or Prime
Rate and Renminbi fixed rate. There was no change to
the Group’s capital structure during the year ended 30
June 2009. In the light of the current financial position
of the Company and provided there is no unforeseeable
circumstance, the management does not anticipate the need
to change the capital structure.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Group employs a total of approximately 1,200
employees with the majority in the PRC. The Group
remunerates its employees largely based on the industrial
practice. There is no share option scheme being adopted by
the Company.
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EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial risk
management and the market risk is kept to minimum. With
the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all transactions and the
borrowings of the Group are primarily denominated in US
Dollar and Hong Kong Dollar respectively. The risk of foreign
exchange fluctuations is minimal under the peg. During the
year, the Group made use of the foreign exchange forward
contract in order to minimise the exchange rate risk as a
result of fluctuation in British Pound. Management will
continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure and will
take appropriate action when necessary. As of 30 June 2009,
the Group has entered into certain foreign exchange forward
contract. Details are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements on page 135.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s management and staff member
for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
their confidence and support for our products, and our
shareholders for their trust and support.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 October 2009
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBs, JP, is the Chairman and
founder of the Group. Dr. Chan is an executive Director of
the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. He is responsible for strategic planning,
corporate development and investment of the Group.
Dr. Chan has over 50 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He is currently the President of the Hong Kong
Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association; Appointed
Member of the University Court of The HK University of
Science & Technology; Member of Product Promotion
Programme Committee of the HKTDC; as well as a member
of other trade associations. In community, charitable and
political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent Honorary
Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association Ltd., and
Member of The Association of Chairmen of The Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed a committee
member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since 2003; and the Executive
Vice President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese Enterprise
Federation since 2006.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, has been with the Group for
over 35 years and is responsible for marketing and corporate
policy development of the Group. She has over 35 years’
experience in jewellery design, product development,
production and marketing of the Group's export business.
Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995.
She is responsible for retail operation and the business
administration functions in the Group. Ms. Chan graduated
from University of California, Berkeley with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics. Ms. Chan is a Graduate Gemologist of
the Gemological Institute of America. She is the daughter of
Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.
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Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, joined the Group in 2000. He
is responsible for all sales and marketing activities as well
as business development and investments of the Group.
Mr. Chan graduated from Babson College in Boston,
Massachusetts with a Bachelor of Science double major
in Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance. He has worked
in both banking and manufacturing industry prior to
joining the Group. Mr. Chan is currently a Vice Chairman
of Entrepreneurs’ Organization Hong Kong, and a Vice
Chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers
Association. He is also the Founding Chairman of the Youth
Chapter of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. Mr.
Chan is the son of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chu Wai Kok, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 31 May 1999 and was re-designated
as non-executive director on 15 October 2004. Mr. Chu is
currently practising as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chu has over 25 years’
working experience in accounting and auditing sectors and
is now a partner of a leading accounting firm in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kai Cheong, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 30 September 2004 and on
15 October 2004 became the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Wong is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. Mr.
Wong is currently practising as a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-
executive director of another Hong Kong listed company.
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Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 30 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he is also actively involved in the community
services for the community of Hong Kong and several
advisory bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 27 years
and subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in the year 2007.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years' experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a founder and director of various logistic companies. Mr.
Chan is a director of a private company engaging in logistics
and forwarding.

Mr. Sze, Irons, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze graduated
with a Bachelor’s degree in Science from University of
Wisconsin, United States in 1985. Mr. Sze has extensive
experience in investment and corporate management and is
currently the chief executive officer and managing director
of a private company, Hang Tung Resources Holding Limited,
and holds directorship in various private companies. Mr.
Sze is an executive member of the Beijing Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also
the vice-chairman of Hunan Province Youth Federation and
the vice president of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association
of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Council and
Court of Lingnan University (2008 to 2011) and elected as a
member of Election Committee of the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (2007 to 2012).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Yuk Keung, John, joined in 1976, is the Operation
Controller of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr.
Lee has over 20 years of experience in managing jewellery
factories. He has extensive knowledge in all production
aspects as well as in stone sourcing. Currently, he oversees
the daily operations of the jewellery factories in China.

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric, joined in 1987, is the
Administrative Controller of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited. He has over 20 years of experience in application
system implementation and supply chain management in the
jewellery industry. Currently, he oversees the daily operation
and human resources of the Group.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The Board considers
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set
out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) throughout the accounting year ended 30 June
2009, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1
and A.4.1 which are explained in the following relevant
paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY’S PRACTICES

A.1. Board of Directors

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the issuer and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the issuer by directing and supervising the issuer’s
affairs. Directors should take decisions objectively in the
interests of the issuer.
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4 %%A%%‘Jgéﬁﬂﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬁ &3 intervals. In addition, special Board meetings will be held
RIT-BE_ZETNFA=1H when necessary. Attendance of individual Directors at Board
Jt%ﬂ(ifi%AQE%&é%Qi% meetings and other board committee meetings during
TEMHNEZEgeEZTEMNEEZLE financial year ended 30 June 2009 are as follows:
JEERIAT -
SRR ETRY
Meetings Attended / Held
ENZES FMZzES
EZg8R = =
Meetings of
Board Meetings of Remuneration
) Director Meeting  Audit Committee Committee
HiTEE Executive Directors
PREEZEL - BBS * AF4HL Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP 10/10 - -
B/t Ms Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 10/10 - il
REHZL Ms Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 8/10 - -
BRIEN & Mr Chan Wai Lap, Victor 10/10 - -
FHITEE Non-executive Directors
KEB%AE Mr Chu Wai Kok 7/10 22 -
RERLE Mr Leung Hai Ming, Raymond* 1/5 - -
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BHESRE Mr Wong Kai Cheong 7/10 22 -
SRBEXAE © BBS, MBE, Mr Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP 7110 212 1
AFat
PRI S A+ Mr Chan Ping Kuen, Derek** 7/10 212 7n
HEERIE S ** Mr Sze Irons*** 3/5 212 1/1
*  ERLER TS N\E+A+HRE *  Mr Leung Hai Ming, Raymond resigned from Non-executive
BHEEHITESERTELAESZES Director and ceased to be a member of Audit Committee with
gHKE - effect from 10 October 2008.
o [EIRESEN_SENF+A_HE ** Mr Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as member of
TEAETFMEESKE - Remuneration Committee on 2 October 2008.
*hk JpEKIE A AN — Bl N\~ HE *** Mr Sze Irons was appointed as Independent Non-executive
EEABIEHITES  EREES Director, member of Audit Committee and member of
REURFWEESKE - Remuneration Committee on 2 October 2008.
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Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Minutes of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are duly kept and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees have recorded
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees, decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the Board are sent to
all Directors for their comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be presented at such board
meeting.
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A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of the issuer’s business. There should be a
clear division of these responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is
not concentrated in any one individual.

Code Provision A.2.1. provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles is the Chairman of the
Company. Dr. Chan oversees the direction of the Group and
also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Dr. Chan is also responsible to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that all Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley is the Managing Director of the
Company. She is responsible for day-to-day management
and the marketing activities of the Group. Ms Cheng is the
wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Although the Company does not have a post of chief
executive officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance
of power and authority.
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A.3. Board Composition

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the issuer. The board should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The
board should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. Non-executive directors should be of
sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry weight.

As at 30 June 2009, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chan Sing Chuk Charles, Ms. Cheng
Siu Yin Shirley, Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai
Lap Victor; one Non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Chu Wai
Kok and four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wong Kai Cheong, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul, Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek and Mr. Sze Irons. All Directors are expressly
identified by categories of Executive Directors, Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors, in all
corporate communications that disclose the names of
Directors of the Company.

Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley and
Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap Victor is the
daughter and son, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng.
Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki is sister of Mr. Chan Wai Lap Victor.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 13 to 16 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
gualifications among members of the Board.
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A.4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors to the
board. There should be plans in place for orderly succession
for appointments to the board. All directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. An issuer must
explain the reasons for the resignation or removal of any
director.

Code Provision A.4.1.provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with articles 115(A) and 115(D)
of the articles of association of the Company. The Board
considers that the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1.
is not material as Non-executive Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in view of the small
number of total directors of the Company, the Directors will
consider to adopt the Code Provision should the number of
Directors increase substantially.

The Directors consider that it is not necessary to have a
nomination committee for the time being. The Directors will
review this from time to time and will establish a nomination
should there be a need.

A proposal for the appointment of a new Director will be
considered and reviewed by the Board. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director should also meet
the independent criteria set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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A.5. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a director of an issuer and of the conduct, business activities
and development of that issuer. Given the essential unitary
nature of the board, non-executive directors have the same
duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as executive
directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of
his/her responsibilities under statue and common law, the
Listing Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the business governance policies of the Group. The
Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, business and strategic development of the
Group to enable the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are highly skilled professionals with expertise and experience
in the field of accounting, financial management and
business. All Independent Non-executive Directors take
an active role in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts. They scrutinize the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. They also take the
lead where potential conflicts of interest arise and serve
the audit and remuneration committees. The Company has
received written confirmation from all the Independent Non-
executive Directors concerning their independence. The
Board considers all of them are independent.
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Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have
confirmed, following enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in Model
Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2009.

A.6. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in such form and of such quality
as will enable them to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities as directors of an
issuer.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the indented date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary and Qualified Accountant that they have an
obligation to supply the Board and Board Committees with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable it to
make informed decisions. The information supplied must
be complete and reliable. The Board and each Director shall
have separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose information relating to its directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters.
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for
setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for
fixing the remuneration packages for all directors. Level
of remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain
the directors needed to run the company successfully, but
companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for
this purpose. No director should be involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.3 (a) to (f) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the Company’s remuneration
policy, and for the formulation and review of the specific
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
executives of the Group.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr.
Sze Irons.

The meeting of the Committee is held at least once a year or
when necessary. All members attended the meeting of the
Committee held on 13 October 2008.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2009 are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to professional advice, to
discharge its duties if considered necessary.
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C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance
position and prospects.

Management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing financial statements of each financial
period, which shall give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that
period. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2009, the Directors have made judgements
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 42 to
44 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2009.

The Board'’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.
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C.2. Internal Controls

The Board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholder’s
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness through the
Audit Committee. The Board requires management to
establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls.
Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial,
operational compliance controls and risk management
functions had been done on an ad hoc basis. Review of
internal controls on different systems will be done on a
systematic rotational basis based on the risk assessments of
the operations and controls.

C.3. Audit Committee

The Board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and for maintaining
an appropriate relationship with the company’s auditors.
The audit committee established by an issuer pursuant to the
Listing Rules should have clear terms of reference.
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The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The Audit Committee has
made available its terms of reference, explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the Board.

As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, annual report, financial
statements and interim report.

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director
and four Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company and is chaired by Mr Wong Kai Cheong.

As issues raised by the Committee have been addressed
by management. The work and findings of the Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, no issues
brought to the attention of management and the Board
were of sufficient importance to require disclosure in the
Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s proposal for
the re-appointment of Grant Thornton as the Company’s
independent auditors for 2010.

For the year ended 30 June 2009, save as the auditors’
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statement, the Group has paid HK$774,000 in relation to the
non-audit services (including taxation and other reporting
services).
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Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are sent to all members of the
Committee for their comments and record respectively, in
both cases within a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditors.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditors, to discharge its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to the board for its decision. The board
should give clear directions to management as to the matters
that must be approved by the board before decisions are
made on behalf of the issuer.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group'’s business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of Matters Reserved
to the Board for Decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with the committees’
authority and duties.

Apart from Audit Committee (particulars are disclosed
under C.3) and Remuneration Committee (particulars
are disclosed under B.1), there are no other standing
board committees established by the Board. Where board
committees are established to deal with matters, the Board
shall prescribe sufficiently clear terms of reference to enable
such Committees to discharge their functions properly. The
terms of reference of board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should endeavour to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation.

At the 2008 Annual General Meeting, a separate resolution
was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-elections of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees shall attend the 2009 Annual
General Meeting to answer questions of shareholders.
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E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should regularly inform shareholders of the
procedure for voting by poll and ensure compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting will
be taken by poll pursuant to the requirement under Rule
13.39(4) of the Listing Rules.

The chairman of the Annual General Meeting will explain
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll at the
commencement of the Annual General Meeting.

The Company will engage Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Ltd to be the scrutineer and ensure the
votes are properly counted.

After the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, the
poll results will be published on the websites of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and at the website
www.equitynet.com.hk/hk513 on the business day
following the Annual General Meeting.
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The Chairman of a meeting shall at the commencement of
the meeting ensure that an explanation is provided to the
shareholders in relation to:

1. the procedure for demanding a poll by shareholders;
and

2. the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then
answer any questions from shareholders whenever
voting by way of a poll is required.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them confirmed that, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2009, they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2009 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 45 to 166.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share was
declared on Monday, 23 March 2009 and paid on Thursday,
23 April 2009. The directors recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.01 and a special dividend of HK$0.30
per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders
on the register of members on Tuesday, 1 December 2009.
The final and special dividends will be paid on or about
Monday, 7 December 2009. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation
of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the property, plant and

equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment
purposes are set out on page 167 of the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 June 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, as computed in accordance with Section 79B
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$255,990,000, of which HK$96,977,000 has been
proposed as final and special dividends for the year.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
168.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$120,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 51% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 28%. The largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 33% and 62%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

As far as the directors of the Company are aware, neither
the directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
Chan Wai Lap, Victor

Non-executive directors:

Chu Wai Kok

Wong Kai Cheong*

Yu Shiu Tin, Paul*

Leung Hai Ming, Raymond
(resigned on 10 October 2008)

Chan Ping Kuen, Derek*

Sze, Irons*
(appointed on 2 October 2008)

* Independent non-executive directors

In accordance with Articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles
of Association, Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, Mr. Chan Wai
Lap, Victor and Mr. Chu Wai Kok shall retire from office by
rotation and all of them are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting.
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Each of the four independent non-executive directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) concerning
his independence. The Board considers each of the four
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to
16 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles has a service contract with the
Company for an indefinite period, which may be terminated
by either party by giving three months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year.
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EEns Name of director

BRE= Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

:(J]e:3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
REH Chu Wai Kok
PRI Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Personal interest

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2009, the interests and short positions of the
directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) were as set out below:

b
SREE0.10BT2ERR AN ERT
Number of ordinary shares of BRABDLE

HK$0.10 each in the Company
EPN: 5 NEER

Corporate interest

Percentage of the
Company's issued
share capital

- 158,816,303 50.768%
(PIZE) (Note)

- 158,816,303 50.768%
(FIZE) (Note)

8,000 - 0.003%

20,000 - 0.006%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Note: Such interests are held by a company, Tamar Investments
Group Limited, which is wholly owned by Dr. Chan Sing Chuk,
Charles, BBS, JP and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley.

Except as disclosed above, at the balance sheet date, none of
the directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate granted to any
director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire such
rights in any other corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2009, no person, other than Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles and Madam Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, had registered an interest in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in note
41(e) to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company'’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules,
for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision
over the financial reporting process and internal controls of
the Group. The audit committee has discussed the Group's
accounting policies and basis adopted, the financial and
internal control process of the Group and has reviewed
the interim and annual financial statements. As of the date
of this report, the audit committee comprises the four
independent non-executive directors and one non-executive
director of the Company.



Annual Report 2009 4 =f
Directors’ Report s EEE R &%

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HEZTTNFAAA=THLFE

%S Eh AUDITORS

RARZEAMEESETES The Company’s auditors, Grant Thornton retire and, being
R MEREERBEEXER - eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

AEESm For and on behalf of the Board

TE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

BREEZE Chairman

BwE —TTNFTHA=TAH Hong Kong, 20 October 2009
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Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out
on pages 45 to 166, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 30 June 2009, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30 June 2009 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

20 October 2009
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2009 2008
Hiat FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
W zs Revenue 6 1,189,622 1,497,682
HERA Cost of sales (1,061,343) (1,337,277)
EH Gross profit 128,279 160,405
SHE Ko SERAR Selling and distribution costs (21,465) (26,676)
TBREHR Administrative expenses (111,890) (73,143)
Hip/Z &8 H Other operating expenses (17,446) (18,690)
REWENTE 2 Changes in fair value of
investment properties 101,080 81,445
RELEEK 2 EF Profit from operations 78,558 123,341
AR Finance costs 7 (12,187) (19,733)
g kNG E Share of results of associates (701) (681)
G ERIEHIEREEEA Share of results of jointly controlled entities 5,472 (1,854)
BRFTIS B AT R A Profit before income tax 8 71,142 101,073
FiisRige,/ (FAx) Income tax credit/(expense) 9 64,807 (13,985)
REEGRF Profit for the year 135,949 87,088
LA REL, Attributable to:
ARAERFAA Equity holders of the Company 10 135,939 83,477
DERR Minority interests 10 3,611
REREREF Profit for the year 135,949 87,088
RE Dividends 11
FRERRR B Interim dividend 3,128 2,798
B AR ERRR B Proposed final dividend 3,128 4,197
BR R Proposed special dividend 93,849 =
100,105 6,995
FRARAEER Earnings per share for profit
BB AELEF attributable to the equity
BREF holders of the Company
during the year 12
— &R — Basic HK44.5 cents &{ll  HK29.8 cents 1Ll
—#8 - Diluted TEAN/A NE N/A
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2009 2008
KiaE FBT FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FEREBEE Non-current assets
Y - W MEEAE Property, plant and equipment 15 435,836 50,723
HE T+ b AR Leasehold land/Land use rights 16 8,883 9,119
AW Investment properties 17 - 752,400
REEE N B 2R Interests in associates 19 3,051 3,606
REERZEHE R~ s Interests in jointly controlled entities 20 216,382 131,978
AN EZCRIEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 12,974 14,177
RHEAEWRIE Long term receivables 22 = 6,135
T IBE B Deferred tax assets 32 9,217 8,890
686,343 977,028
MENEE Current assets
& Inventories 23 295,492 338,573
=) e e Trade receivables 24 106,942 168,745
TEfSFRIA - &i&ﬁi\@ﬁﬂk Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 29,177 42,257
= BAfE R IE 2 BVERER Current portion of long term
receivables 22 1,305 4,926
NAFEFABRCSREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 25 10,324 12,763
JE Ui Bt 2 R B SRR Due from associates 19 330 493
P — R4k HT HI = BE R IA Due from a jointly controlled entity 20 = 120
R kReEH Cash and cash equivalents 26 45,759 128,868
489,329 696,745
IEREHEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 33 838,000 =
1,327,329 696,745
mEIBE Current liabilities
B HENFIA Trade payables 27 (157,142) (199,930)
HAbERF IE&TE.#EH% Other payables and accruals (62,883) (46,170)
TESRIT A Derivative financial instruments 28 (170)
TRIBHEE Provision for tax (11,623) (17 183)
X RE S YNGIE O Due to associates 19 (288) (538)
FEAS R4 %'J:%iﬁffk Due to jointly controlled entities 20 = (3)
RITER—FIRA Bank loans, secured 29 (141,633) (90,870)
(373,739) (354,694)
B ARHERE B E Liabilities associated with assets
Bz aE classified as held for sale 33 (9,628) =
(383,367) (354,694)
MEEERE Net current assets 943,962 342,051
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2009 2008
it FBT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
HWEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 1,630,305 1,319,079
ERBARE Non-current liabilities
DERTRE R Loans from minority shareholders 30 (1,125) (1,125)
IRITEH— AR Bank loans, secured 29 (541,263) (372,409)
R Promissory note 31 (42,000) =
FEEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 (16) (66,972)
(584,404) (440,506)
BEEFE Net assets 1,045,901 878,573
= EQUITY
RATEEFEA Equity attributable to the
bR Company’s equity holders
BEITIRAR Issued capital 34 31,283 27,980
it Reserves 35 916,367 844,531
FURAR S Proposed dividend 96,977 4,197
1,044,627 876,708
DER RS Minority interests 1,274 1,865
e Total equity 1,045,901 878,573
BREEZE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EF Director
BR/)N 38 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EBEE Director
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As at 30 June 2009
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2009 2008
Kt FET FEIT
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
KRB AR Z#Exm Interests in subsidiaries 18 617,916 572,306
RE &R R 2 i Interests in associates 19 = =
REAE WA Long term receivables 22 = 5,703
617,916 578,009
RBEE Current assets
TERFIE « Re KEHM Prepayments, deposits
JEWGRIE and other receivables 73 84
REAEUGRIE 2 Current portion of long
BNHAER 7 term receivables 22 958 958
FEUR KT BB A Bl 5RIA Due from subsidiaries 18 134,525 47,986
JE Uy — I & A R RR Due from an associate 19 8 8
He kR ER Cash and cash equivalents 26 85 82
135,649 49,118
piEI=RE Current liabilities
E b e FRIE & fE T B Other payables and accruals (879) (300)
HIBRHE Provision for tax (1,064) (1,730)
(1,943) (2,030)
RBEEFE Net current assets 133,706 47,088
EEFE Net assets 751,622 625,097
= EQUITY
RAREEFE A Equity attributable to
FE(h R Company’s equity holders
BEITIRA Issued capital 34 31,283 27,980
& Reserves 35 623,362 592,920
FRAR S Proposed dividend 96,977 4,197
T AR Total equity 751,622 625,097
BRESE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EE Director
BB/ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EE Director
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2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BRETE TR E A Profit before income tax 71,142 01,073
ERNSEE BE Adjustments for:
BB A Finance costs 12,187 19,733
il NI Share of results of associates 701 681
EE LR B EE Share of results of jointly controlled entities (5,472) 1,854
W% - WERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,349 9,026
RE i,/ T ifF AEsH Amortisation of leasehold land/land use rights 236 239
ZRHSH Bad debts written off = 2,227
JEUg —FETHE & N B A M85 Amount due from an associate written off = 1,070
FE#E Write back against inventories (4,991) (3,342)
R IBRE Provision for long term receivables 8,449 1,195
B SR ER G Provision for trade receivables 3,205 9,006
REORERENFERR Write back of long outstanding payables - (1,232)
JER — @A B Write back of amount due to a related party - (103)

AHHE s e REERNERSE Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets - 3,865
mE - BE REERESR Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 2,261 =
HEMELH,/ T REYEE  Gain on disposal of leasehold land/land use rights = 3)
HENE « BEKE Loss on disposal of property,

B plant and equipment 65 45
BREZHBARZEE Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries - 66
HEMBAR ZER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 23
RENMERNTEZHE Changes in fair value in investment properties (101,080) (81,445)
TEeRI AN TEESE Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 1,485 39

HBESEER Operating (loss)/profit before
L (51R) /afl working capital changes (3,440) 63,994

FERD Decrease in inventories 48,072 12,120

B EWHERD Decrease in trade receivables 58,598 13,393

BRI - RERAM Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments,

W Weskagm >,/ (38 hn) deposits and other receivables 13,891 (11,952)

ARTEFABRL Decrease in financial assets at fair

SREERD value through profit or loss 2,439 9,750
B\ A AR BRI N Increase in balances with associates (87) (1,116)
,\HT“%‘JE‘@%@% Decrease in balances with

o jointly controlled entities 117 1,954
B 2R EMENFER Decrease in trade and other

s ERRD payables and accruals (16,453) (6,866)
PTHES R T 2IEm Increase in derivative financial instruments (1,315) =
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BRERER

} 2009 2008
et FET FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEE RS Cash generated from operations 101,822 81,277
ERFIE Interest paid (16,923) (19,733)
ERRE Dividend paid (8,220) (11,414)
BREBTEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (7,071) (19,520)
REXBELRDTE Net cash generated from operating activities 69,608 30,610
REZHRENE Cash flows from investing activities
RENE  BELZE Additions to property, plant and equipment (5,966) (7,459)
HENE « BEKEE Proceeds from disposal of
FifSsUa property, plant and equipment 3 593
HE—TBRENERSTEA Proceeds from disposal of an investment property 15,480 105,000
HERBAR (FIHRES Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash
BekB2EH) and cash equivalents disposed of) 40 (2,000) =
WEMB AR IGREE Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash
ReRReEH) and cash equivalents acquired) 39 (130,053) =
HERE T,/ it e Proceeds from disposal of
g svE leasehold land/land use rights - 183
B BESIR Receipt of long term receivables 1,307 111
ISR TR ARG B Increase in loans to a jointly controlled entity (76,000) (37,000)
BEES (FTA)/E4HSFE  Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (197,229) 61,428
REZBRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BE—REEN A Repayment of amount due to a related party - (148,639)
BE-—RLERRER Repayment of loan from a minority shareholder - (20,380)
HERITER New bank loans 65,000 148,724
ERFITER Repayment of bank loans (12,883) (44,111
BEALEE Repayment of promissory note (8,000) =
BEEHEL/(FTA)BELFE  Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 44,117 (64,406)
ReRBLEEZ (BD)/ Net (decrease)/increase in
B h0EEE cash and cash equivalents (83,504) 27,632
FOzRERREEH Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 128,868 102,168
HNEEXEE E  FH Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 395 (932)
FRZBERREEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 45,759 128,868
ReRBEZE2 &R Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
B RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 45,759 72,984
REERER Short term time deposits - 55,884
45,759 128,868
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bE
REks  EagE
KRR ARGER Minority Total
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company Interests equity
BT R AUAK EHRE e
Rx &EE BR  AthE Bh  EfRE  RBEN  RERS 5t
Share Non- Exchange  Investment
Issued ~ premium ~ distributable Other  fluctuation ~ revaluation  Retained  Proposed
capital  account  reserve Tesene reserve reserve profits — dividend Total
FEr  TEr TRt TEr TEr FEr FEr TR TEr TR TEn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000
RESSLELA-B2ER:  Balanceat 11uly 2007 27980 158373 273,606 (8,779 1938 2289 3319719 559 798,982 1,208 800,190
HERNHBAR Exchange differences on trangltion
RELRRAREHER ofthe financial statements of
A ] foreign subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities - - - - 3,108 - - - 3,108 - 3,108
e SHEELTE Change n fair value of
18 avalable-forsalefinancialassets - - - - - (465) - - (465) - (45)
BRERRTHRL Net income recognised
YAHE directy nequity - - - -3 ) = -8 -8
KEFEH Profitfor the year - - - - - -84 - B 3611 87088
ERERIIMARFSAE  Total recognised income
and expense for the year - - - - 3,108 (465) 8347 - 8,120 3611 89,731
HREINEAT Deregistration of subsiciaries - - - - - - - - - 66 6
BiivaRERS Dividend paid to minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - B0 (300
I TELERGRE Payment of final 2007 dividend = = = - - = - (55%)  (55%) - [(55%)
2T \EhiRE Interim 2008 dividend - - - - - - - %) - )
RE-32)\ERERE Proposed final 2008 dividend - - - - - - e 4y - - -
ZTE\ERAZTHZESR  Balanceat 30 June 2008 27980 158373 273606* (8779 5,046* 1824% 414461 4197 876,708 1865 878573
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For the year ended 30 June 2009
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EEEEBR e

KiTRsEEARGRR

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

4%
hrks BaEE
Minority Total

interests equity

GEG) B FUAR EXRE K&
x  RER fifs  Hfb&fE i EffRE REEN BIRE @z
Share Non- Exchange Investment
Issued  premium distributable Other fluctuation revaluation  Retained Proposed
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  dividend Total
fér Fén  TEr  FEr  TAr  FEn  TAr T TAr  FEr TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
RZFZNELA—-AZE#H: Balanceat 1uly 2008 21980 158373 273,606 (8,779 5,046 1824 414,461 4197 876,708 1865 878,573
TEBINBLT Exchange differences on translation
BEDRREREEE of the finandil statements of
BRREHELZELEE  foreign subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities - - - - 5,330 - - - 5,330 - 5,330
AEHEZSHEELTHE  Changein fair value of
LuE available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - (120) - - (1) - (120
EREERTHAL Net income recognised
WAFE directly in equity - - - - 5330 (1,203) - - -4
TEERF Profit for the year - - - - - - 135939 - 135939 10 135949
ERERAZUAREZEE  Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - - - 5330 (1,203 135939 - 140,066 10 140,076
WEMEAIERTZRG  Sharesissued upon acquisition
(=1 of subsidiaries (note 39) 333 32310 - - - - - - 368 - 368
i EMBAR (Fmt) Disposal of subsidaries (note 40) - - - - - - - - - (201) (201)
Bl ERERS Dividend paid to minorty shareholders - - - - - - - - - (400) (400)
KRS \ERERSE Payment of final 2008 dividend - - - - - - - @) @) - (819
SEEN\EBRERS  Addtordlfrd 008 dvidend - - - - - ) - %) - )
“ZENERERS Interim 2009 dividend - - - - - - (3,128) - (3,128) - (3.128)
RE-STNERERE Proposed final 2009 dividend
REfIRE and specil dividend - - - - - - (%697) %6977 - - -
ZEENEAR=THZER  Balance at 30 June 2009 31283 190,743 273,606* (8,779  10,376* 621  449,800* 96,977 1,044,627 1,274 1,045,901
e ZEREEPEGEEEABRR 2T & These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
&% 916,367,000 87T (=TT )\ F - HK$916,367,000 (2008: HK$844,531,000) in the consolidated balance
844,531,000 7T ° sheet.
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— . pEER 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

EBNKRESEERARA (AR
ADTI—ERBEEKILYL AE
ARt BRAR - i
ERINIE AT NEAMBEL
TRl TAT LR =12
MENEE o RQB DR B
BRPAABR AT L -

ARRREMBRAR ([REH])
TEREUTER

—  RRE BUE - HENMEEK
BEMNER

- WERE
- KA

RZZBZENFNLAZ+ZHEK
8% Precious Palace International
Limited ([ Precious Palace ) fz ELFft
BAREHEIEERRA A (HE
[Precious Group ) Z & HPR% A e
(—IEFEEEAMESIE  FER
MfEE=-+11)7 * Tamar Investments
Group Limited ([Tamar]) =+ —&K»%
EBERHESEMEZ AE#H
BAEANRT50.13% D - ZR B
ZFABEHNARR T /)\F
NAZTERZBERARTZ
EENFNATASNBZAMHE
RE - NEER  AARZ&
HAZERG N B A Tamar ©

BIRENT+TRAAEES
—BANTAREZHBRETIRE
BRGFEAE ([HEGEQ
SDFRMHcERMBRSEE
AI(TEBMBREER]) - &
SRESEMAERELN 2 EEY
BREEN - BE G EA KR
B ([2e]) REBRAGD 2K
XimEt - BB mEMBREE LK
BRGAERRAES LHRA
(T EmARRAND) Z BRI -

HE-TENTAASTALS
EZUBRECEREEER =
TEAF A+ BT -

Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong.
The address of its registered office is Flats M & N, 1st Floor,
Kaiser Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the following activities:

Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
jewellery and diamonds

Property investment

Investment

Upon completion of a very substantial acquisition of the
entire equity interest in Precious Palace International Limited
("Precious Palace”) and its subsidiary, Well Friendship
Investment Limited (collectively the “Precious Group’’) on
22 September 2008 as detailed in note 39, 50.13% of the
Company'’s shares are held by Tamar Investments Group
Limited (“Tamar”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. Details of this transaction have been set out
in the Company’s circular dated 27 August 2008 and the
Company’s announcement dated 16 September 2008. In
the opinion of the directors, as at the balance sheet date,
the Company’s ultimate holding company is Tamar.

The financial statements on pages 45 to 166 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (‘"HKFRSs’’) which collective terms included
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
("Int") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"’) and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 20
October 2009.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs

During the year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (the new “HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July 2008:

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial

EIVHERE BE (Amendments) Assets
B EE

AERIZE 7 5%

SEHEN)

E& (FRBRE B AR A HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession
s 2E ZHE Arrangements
Z8g)—

REE 125

78 (R RS METEl HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
BHERE
ZE®)—

ZREE 135

=k (BB BmesEm HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
HRERE F19%— R Defined Benefit Asset,
ZEE)— ERZEE Minimum Funding
BRREFE 1450 HIPREE « & Requirements and their

RESHTE Interaction
NEMEER
1%

BBV HREERNHRE B
EMM 2 RE LB 2 R
REZJNTALBEREAZE -
Ht - AT -

RUFH B RS R EMERR -
THIFRI A ERT BB M RS
RN BB M ARER - BRE
REBIRPERMN o

The new HKFRSs have no material effect on how the results
and financial positions for the current and prior period have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
the following new or amended HKFRSs have been published
but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early
by the Group.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

HKFRSs (continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 32, HKAS 39 &
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(FRIC) - Int 15

Presentation of Financial Statements '

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation '

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements 2

Eligible Hedged Items ?

First-time Adoption of HKFRSs 2

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters ¢

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity and an
Associate !

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions *

Business Combinations ?

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments '
Operating Segments !

Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate '
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

HKFRSs (continued)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation *
HK(IFRIC) = Int 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to
Owners 2
HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers °
Various Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 °
Various Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 7
Notes:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or
after 1 July 2009

Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRS

Generally effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010 unless otherwise stated in the specific HKFRS



Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R &5 [i:E

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_ZTNFEA=THILEFE

SEEHNMAERKEARES
SRR B 2 A2 H B B SR
Z B EERFRER A o

il E#RI R hpEd R
SEFERE 158 (IERT) B 75 R
TR ERERELEAKE
MBHwE 225 o WIRIER] HHE
BSRAAEZ 2TIBKRTER
SIER A RERE - ARE R
BAE—FARERRTACGE
RI/NGHIEE ) » ARG BT
R(—OBILWERRE—HE
foiR A WK T - 251
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.

Amongst these new standards and interpretations, HKAS 1
(Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements is expected to
materially change the presentation of the Group’s financial
statements. The amendment affects the presentation of
owner changes in equity and introduces a statement of
comprehensive income. The Group will have the option of
presenting items of income and expenses and components
of other comprehensive income either in a single statement
of comprehensive income with subtotals or in two separate
statements (a separate income statement followed by a
statement of other comprehensive income). This amendment
does not affect the financial positions or results of the Group
but will give rise to additional disclosures.

In addition, HKFRS 8 Operating Segments may result in new
or amended disclosures. The directors are in the process
of identifying reportable operating segments as defined in
HKFRS 8.

The directors are currently assessing the impact of the other
new or amended HKFRSs upon initial application. So far,
the directors have preliminarily concluded that the initial
application of these HKFRSs is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's results and financial positions.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial assets and liabilities, which are stated
at fair values. The measurement bases are fully described
in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions have been used in preparing these
financial statements. Although these estimates
and assumptions are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations (other than for combining
entities under common control) are accounted for by
applying the purchase method.

This involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of
the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of
whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the
bases for subsequent measurement in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results of
the subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
balance sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit
or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to
equity interests that are not owned by the Group and
are not the Group'’s financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. Profit or loss attributable to the minority
interests are presented separately in the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the Group’s
results. Where losses applicable to the minority
exceeds the minority interests in the subsidiary’s
equity, the excess and further losses applicable to the
minority are allocated against the minority interest to
the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses. Otherwise, the losses are charged against
the Group's interests. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, such profits are allocated to the
minority interest only after the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture.
In consolidated financial statements, investment
in associates is initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the Group's interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The consolidated income statement includes the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associate for the year, including any impairment
loss on goodwill relating to the investment in
associate recognised for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose,
the Group's interest in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and
equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment.

The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment. After the application of
equity method, the Group determines whether it is
necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss
on the Group's investment in its associates. At each
balance sheet date, the Group determines whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If such indications are identified,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
being the difference between the recoverable amount
(see note 3.12) of the associate and its carrying
amount.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in the income statement in the
determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates (continued)

3.5

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where the associate uses accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, adjustments are
made, where necessary, to conform the associate’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when the
associate’s financial statements are used by the Group
in applying the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
two or more parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an
economic activity, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the
venturers.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Joint ventures (continued)

In consolidated financial statements, investment in
jointly controlled entities are initially recognised at
cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the Group’s
interest in the jointly controlled entities are adjusted
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the jointly controlled entity’s net assets
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The
consolidated income statement includes the Group'’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the jointly controlled entities for the year, including
any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investment in jointly controlled entities recognised for
the year.

When the Group'’s share of losses in a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly
controlled entities. For this purpose, the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entities are the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entities.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Where the jointly controlled
entities use accounting policies other than those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to conform
the associate’s accounting policies to those of the
Group when the jointly controlled entities’ financial
statements are used by the Group in applying the
equity method.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
balance sheet date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with separately in the exchange fluctuation
reserve in equity.

Other exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
disposed of, such exchange differences are recognised
in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold. This is usually taken
as the time when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

interest income, on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method;

dividend income, when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established; and

subcontracting services income, when
subcontracting services have been rendered and
accepted by the customers.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended time. A qualifying asset
is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of investment in an
associate is set out in note 3.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities. The cost of the business
combination is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the business combination or investment.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 3.12).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9

3.10

Goodwill (continued)

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than properties
under development and construction in progress,
are stated at cost, which comprise purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use, less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses (note 3.12). Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other costs such
as repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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3.10 Y% - BMENRE () 3.10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the term of the leases or
estimated useful lives of 25 years,
whichever is shorter

Factory buildings

Commercial Over the term of the leases or
buildings estimated useful lives of 33 years,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the term of the leases or
improvements estimated useful lives of 4
years, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17%
Motor vehicles 25%

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values and
useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date. The gain or loss on
retirement or disposal of an asset of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in the income statement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents asset under
construction and is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment and depreciation
commences when the construction work is completed
and the asset is ready for use.

Property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is classified as
properties under development include payments
for leasehold land and land use rights, construction
costs and borrowing costs capitalised, if any, and
professional fees, which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses. When the construction
or development is completed, it is reclassified as
investment property at fair value. At the date of
transfer, the difference between fair value and its
previous carrying amount is recorded in the income
statement.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future
use.
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3.11 Investment property (continued)
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When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it was held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
in the balance sheet reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the balance sheet date.

Property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is classified as
property, plant and equipment and stated at cost until
construction or development is completed, at which
time it is reclassified as investment property. Any
change between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in
the income statement.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in the income statement for the period in
which they arise.
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EEEHBERBE® 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 FEmEERE 3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets
WEEHT B A A « Y & Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries,
EREE et + property, plant and equipment, leasehold land/land
ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ A NETIE use rights, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
iR RN = T boakcl] - jointly controlled entities are subject to impairment
Z*&m?ﬁzﬁ’ﬁﬁ%m 17 testing.

JREDRIE o

BREB A EMRED Goodwill are tested for impairment at least annually,
R HEBELGFHET irrespective of whether there is any indicator that
PORE R - B HRTR they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
BATRAgEIEREEEZ impairment whenever there are indicators that the
EEEER  ffEEMEE asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

BFETRER -

EEEZREERNEA An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
WEl&sER SEe5EME immediately for the amount by which the assets’
R EBEWEINER S carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
HX o alie ez A AT The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
B (REMIGEEREEE reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
A B REER 2B value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
o RAEEAEER - future cash flows are discounted to their present value
TEHAAS 2R 3R € R F BR A using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
AR R IREETE - market assessment of time value of money and the
LA & & Bl Th 35 ¥ & 55 5 risk specific to the asset.

REE &% B E 2 E R
B2 7F i o
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= EEESHREME s 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 FEMEERE(E)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
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TEB 368 fd 0 42 e 5 RN (B T /2
FERREE (IR E S
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For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the cash generating unit, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.
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= EEESTHRME s 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 #HE 3.13 Leases

WA EEE —BLH (T An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
M —IER HE— R of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
SHRK) B R R A 5 5E determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
HEAER BN EEE use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
oY % I8 & E IR EL— I8 8k time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
ZIAMNF - AZERES— Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
BHZERXH 2 LHER of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
HEE—HMEL ZEE of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
DREHZ Tz BEAT lease.

A EL - AR e & B
ERRIEAOEER

() HETAEEsEE (i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Z ¥R

REEREE M58 Assets that are held by the Group under leases
3 B R A 2 1B R ED which transfer to the Group substantially all the
73 [BLfg K2 [B1 3 B2 85 7% risks and rewards of ownership are classified
EAREECEETID as being held under finance leases. Leases
HRBERMERER which do not transfer substantially all the risks
BZEE - REZER and rewards of ownership to the Group are
KBRS BT A R R K classified as operating leases.

EHREAKE 2 HE

RRESKEHEE -
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Leases (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental
are charged to the income statement in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the
nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the rental
income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

= EEESBRBE 3.

3.13 HE (&) 3.13 Leases (continued)

(iv) FHE T Hb/+HE R
1
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3.14 £REE
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AtARSE - BIMAERE
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(iv)  Leasehold land/land use rights

Leasehold land/land use rights represent up-
front payments to acquire long term interests
in the usage of the land. They are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any. The up-front payments are
amortised over the lease period on a straight-
line basis and the amortisation is charged to the
income statement.

3.14 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

- loans and receivables

- available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction cost.
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= EEESHREME s 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 SREEE) 3.14 Financial assets (continued)

W EEEEE ZIRE R Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
EZERNE M EE rights to receive cash flows from the investments
BHEEBARI SRR & expire or are transferred and substantially all of the
WE LB - BRI risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
REMEE - Bmed A At each balance sheet date, financial assets are
FHEBRBRTEREED reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence
KRE SREEEER of impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
SR E o 6B R E loss is determined and recognised based on the
BEFE  REBERS: classification of the financial asset.

BEED BB T MAER

(i) UAFEETAERZ (i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
PREE loss
A AFEF ABE®Z Financial assets at fair value through profit or
TREERER AR loss include financial assets held for trading
EEEZEREE - and financial assets designated upon initial
LA KA )25 R B 3 recognition as at fair value through profit or
TERARTERT AR loss.
MElREEREE L Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
FEBHEREERN they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
HE AZemEE near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
ARXAREE BT financial instruments that are managed together
eRIAKREHRE 2 and for which there is evidence of a recent
— & - R E R pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives,
TN EL A 3 HA Y 3R 5 B including separated embedded derivatives are
BN 8= - BIZIA also classified as held for trading unless they are
FEEE - RIENTH designated as effective hedging instruments or
TE(BEELZN financial guarantee contracts.
EMTETHE)EEE
778 RUET R T B 3Bt

BHEERED - BRITR
FIRFHERE -
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is

prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss

if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or recognising gains or losses
on them on a different basis; or
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information
about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. All financial assets within this
category are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value excluding any dividend and interest
income is recognised directly in equity, except
for impairment losses (see the policy below) and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
financial assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously recycled in equity would
be recognised in the income statement.

Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement.
Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is transferred to

the income statement.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial

recognition.
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3.14 SREE (&) 3.14 Financial assets (continued)
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Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other
than at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes observable data
that come to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the followings loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtors will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement in the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement
in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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3.14 ERMEE(£&) 3.14 Financial assets (continued)

EREEZREE) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iy FPIHEEZEMEE (i) Available-for-sale financial assets
EERERANEERE When a decline in the fair value of an available-
RAMHE 2 2 FE for-sale financial asset has been recognised
EATERLIEBE directly in equity and there is objective evidence
BEEBERPEELE that the asset is impaired, an amount is removed
WER - BleREaRE from equity and recognised in the income
Bk - W E R statement as impairment loss. That amount is
RHERARERBE - measured as the difference between the asset’s
ZEBIRZEE W acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
B8 A AN (#0BR (E{m] A and amortisation) and current fair value, less
SEEREN) MR any impairment loss on that asset previously
TRV EZEZRE R’ recognised in the income statement.
ZAELAE R K=
RERZERERE
BEtE -

MERAHEEZ Reversals in respect of investment in equity
IRATBKRE 2 # instruments classified as available-for-sale are
B - 3R a7 not recognised in the income statement. The
R Big 2 AYE subsequent increase in fair value is recognised
BN E RS directly in equity. Impairment losses in respect
R BHEBZAYF of debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
EIE INRESHEL R (E & increase in fair value can be objectively related
BREREREZEH to an event occurring after the impairment loss
ZERE - AIERE was recognised. Reversal of impairment losses
F R EREAS T in such circumstances are recognised in the
| o EZEFRRAT income statement.

B EE 2 BB

MRPHER



Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R 25 [ ::

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_ZTNFEA=THILEFE

= EEESBRBE

3.14

3.15

3.16

EREEE)
EREEZRIE(E)

(i) MAKAFIEZEHBE
5

WMEBBRSREIAS
BB E < AREEEE
DerEEfrA
BRSRIZREG TS
CIE RSN
ERAHE - ZFRE
BRI R H AR B
B o

3

FETIARRAME R A 3R
FEZBEEDER - K
AAE TR I T 19 E A
E A B A K B AR
ZRANERBEEEM
B BERS T RRHLAIS
RZBLEEM - AJEHF
BIYRE G & ERIEM
EHEREmM M HEMmE
B2 ABET AT E

Fresit

P15 f BV AR 18 M ST
WA,

AERSHEER /S8
BEEREASHRAEREH
ERHRBERBATEZ
REHKERBERRR
(ERBEERRARXM)
TIRBFRERB G -
BAEBMBEEZ AR R
RRBURTH - REBHIA
BEXBBZEHIES
Wat KA HIAR 2 — 8

5 e

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.14

3.15

3.16

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period,
that are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in the income statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 FTEHE (&) 3.16 Accounting for income taxes (continued)
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Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits, including existing
temporary difference, will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if they relate to items that are charged or credited
directly to equity.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

3.19

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the
purpose of cash flow statement presentation, cash
and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issue of share capital. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted
from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Pension scheme (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way to
the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee left
the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the Group’s
employer contributions vested fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group were reduced
by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer’s
contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China except Hong Kong and
Macau (“Mainland China”) are required to participate
in a retirement benefits scheme (the “RB Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the RB Scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the RB Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the RB Scheme.
Contributions under the RB Scheme are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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The Group’s financial liabilities include bank loans,
accruals, trade and other payables, derivative financial
instruments, balances with associates and jointly
controlled entities, promissory note and loans from
minority shareholders.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in the income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in the income statement.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

(a)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

(b)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. Derivatives, including
derivatives which have been separated from
their host contracts are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the income statement.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract
may be designated as a financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

(b)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

- the liabilities are part of a group of financial

liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or

- the financial liability contains an embedded

derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.
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A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23

3.24

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the
capital and reserves section of the balance sheet, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets
to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with
those assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group)
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then on
initial classification as held for sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets, or the disposal group, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to
this measurement policy so far as the accounts of the
Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies governed with.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

3.25

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current assets is not
depreciated or amortised.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical segments as the secondary
reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated
costs include corporate expenses and other expenses
that cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to the
reportable segments. Segment assets consist primarily
leasehold land/land use rights, investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, inventories, receivables
and operating cash. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation
and certain corporate borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment, including additions resulting
from acquisitions through acquisition of subsidiaries.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue
is based on the country in which the customer is
located and total assets and capital expenditure are
where the assets are located.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediate, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or any entity that is related party of the
Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Related parties (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealing with the
entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness, the
collateral security and the past collection history of each
client. If the financial conditions of customer of the Group,
on whose account provision for impairment has been made,
were improved and no impairment of their ability to make
payments were noted, reversal of provision for impairment
may be required.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subjected to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.
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B - AEEANEFE Kk
AW FE < REERESA
ARRFEELR - REEEH
BERAETREHNE - S0E
T &) B3 A 2 IR - BT
AR RRIMEE -

M2 - BERREZRE

EEERERER  REEKR
B GTERIE 365 1E5| T AE
T o BRAETEAFHEARHE -
e e - B (HSp
BR)EAREEZSERBNR
i~ M5 KBESERRENAR
AEEXBHR - BEEREHE
B AFHERE -

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax (continued)

During the year and up to the date of these financial
statements, the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD") of
Hong Kong is in the process of reviewing the tax affairs
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. After taking into
account the development of the IRD’s review to date,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group's tax provision is fairly presented. As at 30 June
2009, in relation to the aforementioned IRD'’s review, the
Group has purchased a tax reserve certificate amounting to
approximately HK$2.8 million.

Since 2008, the Company and a subsidiary were selected
for a field audit by the IRD. The field audit is still in progress
and after taking into account the development of the IRD’s
field audit to date, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that there should not be any material impact on the
Company’s and the Group's tax positions.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 36 to determine
when an asset is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
management evaluates, among other factors, the
technology, market, economic and legal environment that
the Group operates and the business outlook for the Group.
Management assesses the impairment at each balance
sheet date.
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B SEER 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION
DHERTIEMESH T E Segment information is presented by way of two segment

H (W EEDERBREESLE
BofE Ky RED I RELE
R E S o

REBZ EEEB IR E B
B R ARt 2 Em =R T 2 B
MR B - AREEEHDH
FETR O A an B AR TS 2 RS MR
RED - EER & [ % 5 H
EBoEER - BREEHOEZ
BT

(@) Rat ik - HEREE
REAMNER

b) PEERE &

© I|Eo

EEEASBR 2SI - &

DEREAE 2 WA THIE R B e

BmE @ mMEDEEh2EER
REEFEMEE

formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment
reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each
of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
other business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:

(@) design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of
fine jewellery and diamonds;

(b) property investment; and

(©) investment.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the

location of the customers and assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets.
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I FERRER#) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(@) HEBHE (a) Business segment
TREI A E B ZE 5D 2B The following tables present revenue, results and
ZWAEBERETE certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
E - AERFAXER - the Group's business segments.
Fit 2 EEREE
RESHRER
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of NERE RE& &a
fine jewellery and diamonds  Property investment Investment Consolidated
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
FA7 AT FA7 AT FEr AT A AT
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

HHA - Segment revenue:
HEFHREE /R Sales torevenue
BIREEZMA  from external parties 1,151,465

1,462,746 36,861 31,464 1,296 3472 1,189,622 1,497,682

R Segment results (17,882)

24250 108,810%  108,025* (6,947) (2518) 84,021 129,757

APBRR Unallocated expenses
RESEEHEZEF]  Profit from operations

HENA Finance costs
FEIEREDNTEE  Share of results of associates
FE(b R Share of results of

ERzE jointly controlled entities

BEERAR Profit before income tax
FERHES/(B%)  Income tax credit(expense)

REER Profit for the year

@ REYMEQNFE KD
101,080,000 870 (=TT /)\4F :
81,445,000/ 7T ) B R SPHELE
EBo a2 [ MERE N2 -

(5,463) (6,416)
78,558 123,341

(12187)  (19733)
(101) (681)

5412 (1,84)

JARLY] 101,073
64,807 (13985)

135,949 87,088

* The changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$101,080,000 (2008: HK$81,445,000) were included in
the segment results of the business segment of “Property
investment”.
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5 SEERE) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) H=XK2I(E) (a) Business segment (continued)
Fit 8 HEREE
HEEHRER
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of WERE K& &a
fine jewellery and diamonds  Property investment Investment Consolidated

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
fEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEx  TEr  TEL TR
HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

PHEE Segment assets 481,238 619,230 1,231,363 753,748 23,980 27369 1736581 1400347
RBENAZER  Interests in associates 3,051 3,606
REREGEE  Interestsin ointly

LER controlled entities 216382 131978
AOREE Unallocated assets 57,658 137842
BELE Total assets 20136712 1,673,773
PHaE Segment liabilities 194,270 236,222 36,587 9,765 379 354 231,236 246,341
BTET-FHA  Bank loans, secured 682,806 463279
e Promissory note 42,000 =
APRERE Unallocated liabiltes 11,639 85,580
L Total liablities 97,711 795,200
HHTER : Other segment information:
il Depreciation 8,153 8,855 137 112 59 59 8,349 9,026
A&/t Amortisation on

il leasehold land/and use rights 236 239 - - - - 236 239
SR Non-cash expenses 13,980 17,408 3 - - - 14,003 17,408
BARRY Capital expenditure 2,545 7459 391,389 - - - 393934 7459
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i SEER#) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) HEHDE (b) Geographical segment
(i) TREIIRMWERTIS (i) The following table provides an analysis

HAREE 2 WastED of the Group's revenue by geographical
Z oM (EEmRR market, irrespective of the origin of the
%7 RIRHFERT) - goods and services.
EmiHZ HEWA
Sales revenue by

geographical market
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
=M North America 558,919 762,303
BOM Europe 411,914 499,675
BB Hong Kong 194,227 225,828
Hith i[5 Other locations 24,562 9,876
1,189,622 1,497,682
(iy DWBEEREAFRZ @iy ~ The following is an analysis of the carrying
ZIREERSHEE amount of segment assets and capital
Ff 1E [ 2 5 A 40 expenditure, analysed by the geographical
e area in which the segment assets are

located.
DEEE 2 REE EARFX

Carrying amount of segment assets Capital expenditure
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET T#ET FET T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
LM North America 96,458 132,222 - -
B Europe 74,831 107,168 86 1,536
B Hong Kong 1,364,209 937,098 391,614 318
B ARE Mainland China 199,818 218,971 2,234 5,605
H i@ Other locations 1,265 4,888 - -
1,736,581 1,400,347 393,934 7,459
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VAN

4y = 6. REVENUE

Yeas (BIANER B 2 & 550 354840
REREMESTREELEMR
ZEEFEE - MIRBUA -
TWAER  FBKRARKEZ

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts, subcontracting services
income, gross rental income, interest income, and dividend

A& S A o income from investments.
REEWE 2 ATWT : An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HESm Sale of goods 1,137,106 1,462,746
INTARFEUWA Subcontracting services income 14,359 =
Hel AE5 Gross rental income 36,861 31,464
F BUA Interest income 850 2,780
TEZIRBIWA Dividend income from investments 446 692
1,189,622 1,497,682
Bl B A 7. FINANCE COSTS
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
MEFRX : Interest charges on:
RITERK Bank loans
— AR RAFABHEE — wholly repayable within five years 16,361 2,782
— AR AFEEER — repayable over five years - 16,951
ARAFERNBHEEZ Promissory note wholly
O RE repayable within five years 562 =
BIEERR Total borrowing costs 16,923 19,733
B ERARYEEAR{LZ  Less: Bank loan interest capitalised
RITERF S in properties under development (4,736) =
12,187 19,733
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I\~ BRETS B ATE 7

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ASERFEHAIEFANER,  The Group's profit before income tax is

(GIA U TBEER arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BHEFERAK Cost of inventories sold 1,047,469 1,292,926
RENFHSMAESR Gross rental income from investment properties (36,861) (31,464)
REMEREX Outgoings in respect of investment properties 2,541 2,668
REME R WATE Net rental income from investment properties (34,320) (28,796)
n%  BERRENE Depreciation of property,

(MzEt) plant and equipment (note 15) 8,349 9,026
MBE L,/ T {F R Amortisation of leasehold

GiESway) land/land use rights (note 16) 236 239
BECEHET R Minimum lease payments under

BFZRERENRK operating leases on land and buildings 4,749 5171
RS Auditors' remuneration 925 997
FERE* Write back against inventories* (4,991) (3,342)
fTESRIANTEEE Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments

—EHEBAN — forward currency contracts 1,485 =

BTN — interest rate swap contracts - 39
INEEE /() 38 Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 11,072 2,197)
AfHE 7 s HEERBEER Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets = 3,865
W% - BERRERESE*  Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ** 2,261 =
R IR Provision for long term receivables 8,449 1,195
HEMRELH, / THFAMENE  Gain on disposal of leasehold land/land use rights = 3)
HEME - BE K& Loss on disposal of property,

B plant and equipment 65 45
i Bad debts written off = 2,227
JE I — e & 1 Bl OB M Amount due from an associate written off = 1,070
B SN IaRE Provision for trade receivables 3,205 9,006
REOREEE ZRTTEEE Write back of long outstanding payables - (1,232)
[EN—REE R AR E Write back of amount due to a related party - (103)
HENBRREBE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 23 =
# REEEFERBEIALZE W * Write back against inventories for the year was included in “cost

KR [PHERK] A - of sales” on the face of the consolidated income statement.
*% RNEEYE BELRZERE *x Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment for the year

EEREIIAGEWEETZ [HAi was included in “other operating expenses” on the face of the
KEBR]A - consolidated income statement.
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N FIBEHRGRE) X 9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
BEBNEHIIARFERE S Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
EE A Z (AT IE SR B @ A i f = 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
16.5% (=TT )\ : 16.5%) 5t arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
H o Hhih[R ERT | 2 B8 assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
AL B2 E 2 (E R R A [RIR rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
REBZRERTE - WIREZS operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
AR 2 IRITAD - RENIE practices in respect thereof.

BlfEL -
2009 2008
FET TrE7T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B ER Current tax
0 Hong Kong 2,757 10,108
LA F R HRRE R Over provision in prior years (281) (9,554)
2,476 554
FEERETIE (fIE=+=) Deferred tax (note 32)
KEE Current year (67,283) 15,982
AR TRREA Attributable to decrease in tax rate = (2,551)
(67,283) 13,431
FriSHi (%), F#%8 Total income tax (credit)/expense (64,807) 13,985

~
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A REHGER) HBXx 9.

(%)

PRt (), /P g st

AR R E R

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and

2009 2008
FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETSHE A ) Profit before income tax 71,142 101,073
BRE AR AR IBIR AR Tax on profit before taxation,
% 16.5% calculated at the statutory
(ZZZN\F : 16.5%):TE rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) 11,738 16,677
RE fth Bl AR [ 5 2 Pt Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
BRRTRME & operating in other jurisdictions (1,734) (2,261)
FEIREE SN BIEE 2 IS E  Tax effect of share of results of associates 116 112
FE(L RS BB E Tax effect of share of results
I E of jointly controlled entities (903) 306
AP H 2R E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 6,429 1,950
FIRRTRIA 2 % 5 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (2,717) (4,946)
AiE@ﬁ A FERS Tax effect of prior years'
BE B E tax losses utilised this year (1,023) (844)
AEEHRLERER Tax effect of temporary
ZIBE differences recognised this year - 9,366
ERIETER RS BIFEHE Tax effect of temporary differences
BERMERZRL derecognised in associated with the
MisE 2 assets classified as held for sale (82,500) =
REER %THT%%EZH%“%L Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised - 58
AERTRISEE 2GS E  Taxeffect of tax losses not recognised 6,068 5,672
REEHRIKFIE| B2 FY]  Effect on opening deferred balances resulting
BRI 2 8 from a decrease in tax rate during the year - (2,551)
VATE 5 [2 R EE RS Over provision in prior years (281) (9,554)
AEEHE(HER) /FAX Tax (credit)/charge for the year (64,807) 13,985

rRAEZHFEAEAE 10

1 i 7

AAREEFEARESSE &
A135,939,000/8 T (ZE=
& 183,477,000 7C) F © AR
R EREFERE 25 A
98,673,000 L (ZZETNF ¢

19,299,000 7T) °

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the equity
AN holders of the Company of HK$135,939,000 (2008:
HK$83,477,000), a profit of HK$98,673,000 (2008:
HK$19,299,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
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+— KR
(@) AFEMA AR AR

11. DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends payable to the equity holders of the

BARE Company attributable to the year:
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE— G E®AY0.010/8C  Interim — HK$0.010 (2008: HK$0.010)
(ZZTZ)\F : 0.01057T) per ordinary share 3,128 2,798
BORAR A — SRS Bk Proposed final — HK$0.010
0.010BTT(ZTZNF (2008: HK$0.015)
0.015%7T) per ordinary share 3,128 4,197
BORE Rl — SRR R Proposed special — HK$0.300
030087 (=FZ/\F : &)  (2008: Nil) per ordinary share 93,849 =
100,105 6,995

REE BREK 2 R
KR Rl AR B B HE R R S
BHZEBE BERBRA
BE_TTAFARA=T
AL 2 R FBEK -

() AFECEHEREXFNZ
- BFEERMNARF

The final and special dividends proposed after the
balance sheet date have not been recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date, but reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ended
30 June 2009.

(b) Dividends payable to the equity holders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,

RERFEE ARE approved and paid during the year:
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEEHAREZNZ Final dividend in respect of the previous
FMEREE 2 REBRE financial year, approved and paid during
FhREmAL0.01587T the year, of HK$0.015 per ordinary share
(ZEZNF : FREER (2008: HK$0.020 per ordinary share)
0.020787T) 4,692* 5,596

& ERZ=ZZEZTENFENA
Z =BT RE
%%33,030,303% & @
B #HEZZZENE
ANA=ZTHLEFEEX
NOEBRREARE R
4,692,000 7T °

* The actual final dividend paid for the year ended
30 June 2008 was HK$4,692,000 due to additional
33,030,303 ordinary shares issued and allotted on 22
September 2008.

O
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+=

- BRER 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
B E KRB F TR B AN A A The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
BEFEA ARELASEE LR net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
135,939,000 7T ( —ZZ N\ 4F - for the year of HK$135,939,000 (2008: HK$83,477,000),
83,477,000 ) M FAE 1T and on the weighted average of 305,319,334 (2008:
DN 5 EimAR 305,319,334 A% 279,800,031) ordinary shares in issue during the year.
—ZTT)\F : 279,800,031 %)
REZE_ZTZNEFER_TZNFE No diluted earnings per share amounts are shown as the
NA=ZTHILEFE  NABNE Company has no potential ordinary shares for the years
BEEETE TR I E ended 30 June 2009 and 2008.
I RERESERT -
“EEREARZ(E 13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
IEEMME — M 5 (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
+Mm) EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 14)
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
IE - %s =FHk Wages, salaries, allowances and 102,602 94,045
Bz benefits in kind
RIS A —HEEMFETE] Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,715 5,836
R BNz R Less: Forfeited contributions - (25)
108,317 99,856
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+m - EEMEREREE 14 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
A B Z Frif AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

(@ MWELEMRAUEESAT (a) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the
BEIE—B ST — KR Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong

ZEZMET Companies Ordinance is as follows:

REE
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ik Fees 254 217
e BBINEYRZE  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,330 5,345
TE4T Bonus 13,233 2,492
RIRGT IR Retirement scheme contributions 237 241
19,054 8,295
Br EXCRTIREEE SN - WA Save as disclosed above, none of the executive, non-
EFEEABRBAHATES executive or independent non-executive directors
FEHMITEF LB LIEATT received any fees or other reimbursements or
EFWEEMEE - HAib emoluments for both years.

mExME -
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)

1+ - EEMERSREIR 14.
IN=P4 1 1€

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

() HEzE_ZEZANER_ZTZFT (a) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
NERNA=ZTHILEE for the years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 are set
REREENEEES Y out below:

BeEHInT
2009
e 28
RENFIR B
Salaries, HE
allowances Retirement
#1£  and benefits AN scheme ohy
Fees in kind Bonus  contributions Total
Fén FEr FéEn FET T
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
HTES: Executive directors:
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,482 290 154 3,926
i3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 944 580 43 1,567
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 437 181 19 637
4 Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 467 182 21 670
FHTES . Non-executive directors:
KEE Chu Wai Kok 50 - - - 50
288 (M5E()  Leung Hai Ming, Raymond (note (i) 17 - - - 17
BUFETES . Independent non-executive directors:
BlE Wong Kai Cheong 50 - - - 50
REX Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
RmE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - = 50
HsR 2 (MIZE D)) Sze lrons (note (i) 37 - - - 37
“ETNFEE Total 2009 254 5,330 1,233 237 7,054

HE_ZZNF A=
BIEFE  BEERFAX
FEEENTASEES
ZAE4L#912,000,000%
T BEREEBREEY
R EBEREREITH AR
BT AR IRE T
BREEzc5E - Bt -
il B B 2 EE
S OMI AR RN DK T
BEE L -

For the year ended 30 June 2009, included in the
employee benefit expenses, there was a bonus
of approximately HK$12,000,000 payable to
the directors of the Group but the allocation to
individual directors from the total bonus pool is not
yet determined at the balance sheet date and up to
the date of the financial statements are authorised
for issue. As a result, the above analysis of directors’
remunerations on a named basis does not reflect the
bonus to be allocated to respective directors.
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& ke HREE 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
ZEM =) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@) HE_ZZNLFEK_ZTZ (a) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
NERNA=Z1THIEEE for the years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 are set
R ZHELNHREE S out below: (continued)

BT : ()

2008

e 2 RIK

REWHE TRl

Salaries, Retirement
£  and allowances A scheme Bt
Fees  benefits in kind Bonus  contributions Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BTES ! Executive directors:

RE2 Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,500 890 158 4,548

L3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley = 960 1,020 43 2,023

REM Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 435 275 2 730

i Chan Wai Lap, Victor = 450 307 20 777

FHTES: Non-executive directors:

KEEH Chu Wai Kok 50 - - - 50

2888 (fif:E () Leung Hai Ming, Raymond (note (i) 50 - - - 50

BU%HTES . Independent non-executive directors:

BEE Wong Kai Cheong 50 - = - 50

RER Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50

FRmE Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 17 - - - 17

“TT)\F@t Total 2008 217 5,345 2,49 241 8,295

FABEESHEXRE There was no arrangement under which a director

WEE A& 2 ZHE waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the years.

FR - AEETERES During the years, no emoluments were paid by the

AT fRI B <2 VE A3 DA 3k Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or

RN AZS £ (B I 2 2B ok upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss

BRI (E o of office.

Hiat - Notes:

(i) REBHAR_ZTLF 0) Leung Hai Ming, Raymond has redesignated from
+TZAZ+TN\BHEBL independent non-executive director to non-executive
FRNTEFAERLR director of the Company on 28 December 2007 and has
RAIBERMITES  WER resigned as non-executive director of the Company on
—EEN\F+AT+HE 10 October 2008.

FEARRBERITES ©

iy HEER-_ZZNEFT (i) Sze Irons was appointed as an independent non- 113

AZREZEARAXRA executive director of the Company on 2 October 2008.

BIUIEITES -



Notes to Financial Statements m B1 78R & /2t

For the year ended 30 June 2009
E-FEAFAASHALER
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T -EEMERSHEE
IN=P4 1 1€

FARAURSHFALERE
=H(ZZENF: =8)
B HMEHFBHRN L
Xe B TITMA(ZEEN
FMBUFEEZRS

14. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year
included three (2008: three) directors, details of
whose emoluments are set out above. Details of the
emoluments of the remaining two (2008: two) non-
directors, highest paid individuals are as follows:

FALT S FEBT ¢
2009 2008
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e  FBREWAE  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,707 2,552
RIRFHEIE TR Retirement scheme contributions 29 30
TEAL Bonus 104 126
1,840 2,708

FEFZHZSH AL
EZERN T TIEELZ

The number of non-directors, highest paid
individuals whose emoluments fell within the

ABT - following bands is as follows:
AEEH
Number of individuals
2009 2008
Z % 1,000,00078 7T Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 7T E 1,500,000 70 HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1 1
2 2

FR - AREALEEA R A
Rm s AL HEABE
ERIMA R INAAREH
2 EEE) Sk BB AR (E -

During the years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the two highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.
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+35 ¥ - BB RRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

rE Group
S Yga [7il %8
U VE BE  RERSE FRIE
Buildings and Properties BB Fumiture fidures, — Construction
leasefold under Plantand  equipmentand in e
improvements  development machinery  motor vehicles progress Total
FAT 7A7r FAT FAr FA7r FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
NEELENAZTH At30 June 2007
i Cost 67,468 - 58524 45557 - 171,549
EHTERIE Accumulated deprecation
and impairment (38,124) - (47874) (36,542) - (122,540)
i Net ook amount 2934 - 10650 9015 = 49,009
HE-TBN\ERA=TALEE Vear ended 30 June 2008
2 Opening net book amount 293t - 10,650 9015 - 49,009
it Additions 198 - 1,544 DML 2646 7459
i3 Disposals (129 - (35) (159 - (639
il Depreciaton 3,191 - (1817 (1018) = 9,006)
Ejiig Bxchange redignment 2660 - 807 15 - 3919
ERERSE Closing net book amount 9183 - 10832 8,062 2616 50723
REEN\EAAZTH At30 June 2008
i Cost 64469 - 60946 4733 2646 175,39
ZfERAE Accumulated depreciaton
and impairment (35,286) - (50,114) (39212) - (124.672)
EhsE Net book amount 29183 - 10832 8,062 2646 50723

(=al
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+THE -ME-BERRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(& (continued)
REB () Group (continued)
5B
BTREE EEQ RERAE
EE S BE  Fumiture, HRIE
Buildings and Properties RS fixtures,  Construction
leasehold under Plantand  equipment and in %
improvements  development machinery  motor vehicles progress Total

4 TEr 4 4 Tt 4
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000

BECSENEAACTALER Year ended 30 June 2009

FIERTE Opening net book amourt 29,183 - 10832 8062 2646 50,723
YENBLE (=th) Acquistion of subsicares note 39) - EEDE) - - - 38232
HE Additions 105 8,157 136 531 1,603 10,702
E Transfer 4369 - - - (4,369) -
it Disposals = = 5 (68) = (69)
i Depreciation (3,386) - (121 (3,686) - (8,349)
HE Impaiment - - (1.41) (1,020 - (2.261)
EiAR Exchange realignment 1620 - I [l 10 1857
EXREFE (losing net hook amount 32,061 391,389 852 3,864 - 435,836
RERNEAZTE At30 Jure 2009

R& Cost 1299 391,389 59,286 48,157 - 571,824
ZERE Accumulated depreciaton and impaimment  (40931) - (50,764) (44293) - (1359%89)
FARE Net book amount 32,061 391,389 852 3,864 - 435,836
&L F) B 4,736,000 8T (== Included in properties under development is interest
TN\F: EB)EIABERTYE capitalised of HK$4,736,000 (2008: Nil).
RZZEZNEFESA=+H &% At 30 June 2009, the Group’s properties under
= AR FE A FE A 410,747,000 development and certain buildings with aggregate net
BT (ZZE/)\FE:17,733,000 7 book amounts of approximately HK$410,747,000 (2008:
TL) X BERBPYERE TEFH HK$17,733,000) were pledged to secure general banking
FEIHRAERE TAREE 2 — IR facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

TEEMFE=T) -
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+75 %Eifﬂl/:tﬂﬂﬁﬁi

16. LEASEHOLD LAND/LAND USE RIGHTS

AEE

Group
2009 2008
FET FEr
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHAREFE Opening net carrying amount 9,119 9,538
FREHER Amortisation charge for the year (236) (239)
HE Disposal = (180)
FAREEFE Closing net carrying amount 8,883 9,119

AEENAE + 3/t fF A
ZHEDRRBEMNEERENR - &

The Group's interests in leasehold land/land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net

FREVFESITAT book values are analysed as follows:
2009 2008
FET TH#ET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REBRFHA In Hong Kong held on:
TEER+FH HHEE Medium term lease of between 10 to 50 years 3,683 3,781
MEBLAIMNER Outside Hong Kong, held on:
F 6 LA_E R EAFE HA Long term lease of over 50 years 248 248
+E =R +FhHATHE Medium term lease of between 10 to 50 years 4,952 5,090
8,883 9,119

RZZZAFSA=1TH &&E
%] HE E1 (B 48 % 496,528,000 75 7T
(=== )\5:6,839,000/87T) &
ETHE T, T fF AWK
HABERE T AREBE 2 —ARR1T
FEFiE=TN) -

At 30 June 2009, the Group's certain leasehold land/
land use rights with aggregate carrying amounts of
HK$6,528,000 (2008: HK$6,839,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
29).

~
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+t - HEME 17.

AEBULEHETARKE - A
RRESHEAELEBNAEY
Fikm - HRARFERLRIRKE
EMERBLEAR -

FINGABERER FEER

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and is classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the

LT consolidated balance sheet can be summarised as follows:
T5E
Group
2009 2008
firit &7 TAT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

RN EEE Carrying amount at beginning of the year (a) 752,400 775,955

HE Disposals (b) (15,480) (105,000)

ATERREE 25 ha Net gain from fair value adjustments © 101,080 81,445

BREIARENEZBE Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (note 33) (838,000) =

(ME=1=)

RERZIRE{E Carrying amount at end of the year - 752,400

Hist - Notes:

() N_BENEAXA=1+H & (@ At 30 June 2008, the Group’s investment properties were
EE A LR BT BN revalued by Chung, Chan & Associates, an independent
EFEETIRARTERES firm of chartered surveyors, at HK$752,400,000 on an open
HpEE. 2EELYESH market existing use basis by reference to market prices for
8 & # & (& /5752,400,00055 similar properties. A fair value adjustment on revaluation
T AESGEREE Y AT of HK$81,445,000 arising therefrom was credited to the
{8 39 £ 81,445,000 3 7T & A & consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 June
E-TE\EXA=TALSE A0,
EziFelm e
MR-ZBBNEXA=+H & As at 30 June 2008, all the Group'’s investment properties were
EEHFAREMEHGLNE situated in Hong Kong and were held under medium term
% AR R AR o ez
R-EENEAA=+E & As at 30 June 2008, the Group's investment properties with
£ [ fE T {8 752,400,000 7T carrying amount of HK$752,400,000 were pledged to secure
IR B IR - PR general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).
FTAKEz —RIRTEE (i
)

(b) R_EENERA-—+HA - (b) On 25 September 2008, the Group entered into an agreement

REEE—BBIE =L
B & % © LA (E15,480,000
BLEHEMNRAEAHRKE
37-455% e LR LB —Hi 12
BARZREME - & Ll
REMEEN-_ZENET A
Z+-tH5EMK * 3,080,000 %
TZAFEEREBEE=ZZTA
EXA=ZTRLEFEZHAK
ERHER ©

for sale and purchase with an independent third party in
relation to the disposal of an investment property located
at Unit A, 12th Floor, Kaiser Estate Phase I, No. 37-45 Man
Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, at a consideration of
HK$15,480,000. The disposal of the aforesaid investment
property was completed on 27 October 2008 and a fair value
gain of HK$3,080,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 30 June 2009.
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+t - HEWE = 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
© RZZEZENFAATAE A% (0) On 16 June 2009, the Group entered into a provisional
B — BT E= e VR E agreement for sale and purchase (the “Provisional
& &+ LA {2838,000,0007 Agreement”) with an independent third party in relation to
THEMREBFFEFFES23 the disposal of an investment property, the whole block of
525 ~ 527 8 FiE A A E ([1ER Continental Diamond Plaza, No. 523, 525, 527 Hennessy Road,
EORE ) BEZZEME - 1 Hong Kong (“Continental Diamond Plaza”), at a consideration
—ETNEANA=1H " BEF of HK$838,000,000. As at 30 June 2009, in accordance with
ISR EXERIFE 55 - BAEA HKFRS 5, Continental Diamond Plaza was classified as “Assets
REWSR [P RFHEHEZE classified as held for sale” and its carrying amount was revalued
B mEMEARNERERET) to HK$838,000,000 with reference to the consideration as
2EHE R B ZREEHG stipulated in the Provisional Agreement. As a result, a fair value
{B/4838,000,00077T ° At + A gain of HK$98,000,000 was recognised in the consolidated
T {& U 25 98,000,000 7T 2 R & income statement for the year ended 30 June 2009.
ETTNFANA=THLFE
ZIRE WNESFRHER
RZZTNF+A+H B On 16 October 2009, the disposal of Continental Diamond
REEEMEARNE  AEEE Plaza was completed and the entire sale proceeds have been
BB ERSHUE © fully received by the Group.
s WA N )V P X 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
bN/NCT|
Company
2009 2008
FEr FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
LTI - WA Unlisted shares, at cost 124,849 95,261
HEHE Deemed capital contribution 173,710 173,710
BB Provision for impairment (25,037) (25,037)
273,522 243,934
JE Bl B8 X B FR IR Due from subsidiaries 446,394 430,372
FEUIHT B A BRI Provision against amounts due
2 Bt from subsidiaries (102,000) (102,000)
344,394 328,372
617,916 572,306
DERMEEELZ Due from subsidiaries classified
NGRS as current assets 134,525 47,986
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T\~ KRB LR Z#m e 18.

BEWB AR ZEHRTVEERF - &
B R BAEREE B ARK
+—EARNEE T BERA
BrEN/E(E i PRI B A Rl 2 518
A80134,525,000/8 L (ZZEZ/\
£F 1 47,986,000 7T) °

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable within the next twelve months from
the balance sheet date, except for the amounts due from
subsidiaries of HK$134,525,000 (2008: HK$47,986,000)
which are repayable on demand.

R-BBAEAA=TA B

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2009

(=)

B AR BT - are as follows:
BHRER/ YN 3
ML,/ BETRAEE BEASY
BRkEend Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
41 registration registered/issued Ei it TEXH
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERENEERERAR BE 2REE10E T EBR 100 - EREHRITE
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Diamond trading
and polishing
Brangredi Limited A 1REE BT AR - 100 FERHES
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Jewellery trading
C.J. (UK) Limited ] 1,000 R 1 545 2 LBk - 100 REAMNE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of Jewellery wholesaling
(GBP1 each
ENERARAT BB 10,000 REfE 1 AT TR - 100 #085
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Diamond trading
HK$1 each
{EfEA (IF) ERAR" E BBIRAT 497,760 8T - 100 ERESLITE
Mainland China Paid up capital of Diamond trading
HK$7,497,760 and polishing
Continental Investment A 100,000 REIE 1 87T Bk 100 - REER
Company Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$1 each
{BRIE (1) ERAR* hE B4R 35,000,000/87 - 100 KB BHE
Mainland China Paid up capital of Jewellery manufacturing
HK$35,000,000
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I\ B AR Z#Ewm e 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BARER/ RAREL
iMmA,/ BRTRAEE REAAL
BakEEny Nominal value of ~  Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
£ registration registered/issued BE i TEXR
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ERREEHRARAR &b 10,000,000 iR (E 1872 BBK 100 - KB AMRE RIS
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares of Jewellery manufacturing
Limited HK$1 each and wholesaling
EBAMERR AR &R 2MREE BT ERR - 100 ESE
Continental Property Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
Holdings Limited
Crystal Gain Developments EERREE 100REE 1 ETz LBk - 100 NERE
Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of Property investment
US$1 each
DCGS Management Service Bk 10,000,000 RE(E 1 BT 2 E R - 100 RERR/REERRS
Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Investment holding/
of HK$1 each providing management
services
BEREARAA &R 500,000 REE 1w Eidik 100 - REBR
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
of HK$1 each
RAKERARLA & 10,000,000 k(& 17872 BBk - 100 ERESRITE
Man Yue Jewelry (Factory) Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Diamond trading
Limited of HK$1 each and polishing
Master Gold Development RERAES 1REE 1 ET LBk - 100 REER
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
BAERBERAR & 600,000 R E{E 10872 SRR 100 - RAER
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Hong Kong 600,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
Factory Limited of HK$10 each
REER (BM)BRAR" el E &7 11,000,000 57 - 100 BRESNITE
Mainland China Paid up capital Diamond trading
of HK$11,000,000 and polishing
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+/\ - "B AR Z#E = 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BfRER/ ARAEL
ML/ BERTRAEE BHEMN
BakEEnd Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
] registration registered/issued B itz FEER
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
B A ENHAERAA &R 117,000,000 RE(E0.178 T2 &R 100 - Bt BRI
Optik Technologies Limited Hong Kong 117,000,000 ordinary shares Providing information
of HK$0.1 each technology
services
Patford Company Limited A 100 R A 10078702 LAk - 100 NERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment
Realford Company Limited A 100 REfE 100 B2 LBk - 100 NERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment
Vieway Investments Group RERLES 2RAE1 R ERR 100 - REHER
Limited British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding

ENERREERAR &R 78,000 REIfE 18T KB - 100 RERR /RECERS
Wilber Corporate Hong Kong 78,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 Investment holding/
Services Limited providing
corporate
services
Yett Holdings Limited RERRESE 100 EE 1 ET 2 LBk 100 - REER
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Investment holding
of US$1 each
BXXERROIM)BRAT & B#Ik76,087,638 BT - 100 Bt BRI
Mainland China  Paid up capital of HK$6,087,638 Providing
subcontracting
services
Precious Palace EBANES 1REE1Er LRk - 100 REER
British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
EERERRAH &B VREE1 BT ERR - 100 WERE
Well Friendship Investment Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Property investment

Limited



Annual Report 2009 £ =f

Notes to Financial Statements m Bl 7% 3R 25 Mi3:

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE-_ZTNFEA=THILEFE

T\~ KRB LRz m e

# R BEEMZ S B E R -

* FBEEDE Eufﬁmﬁii’]m
BT EMEEXKER
BE - R ES Eﬂ'Eﬂi%ﬂZ%(
ZHBAREEFERROME
REEEEFHERESY

EERA - ERIIFARA]ZH
BRAADNEIBXEANFE ZEE
Ei%ﬁ)ﬂ?$%l§§@f§2iﬁﬁﬁﬁ
n e EER/RHEMHBA
ZHBHEEBURRE i@fﬁﬂﬁ

Th - REVEARZHE

ol
Bk

18.

19.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

L Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the Mainland
China
* Not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong or other Grant

Thornton International member firms. The aggregate net assets
of these subsidiaries not audited by Grant Thornton amounted to
approximately 5% of the Group's total net assets.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

EN-SE ] ART
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

THET FET FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

FE_ETRRM ~ #2AKA Unlisted shares, at cost = = 9,387 9,387
EREEFE Share of net assets 6,949 7,504 = =
BB B Provision for impairment (3,898) (3,8998) (9,387) (9,387)
3,051 3,606 - -
& N T 2 &5 Balances with associates
REE PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

TFET TET FAET T
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$°000

JEURES S N A]FIB  Due from associates 1,589 1,752 8 8
B B Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259) = =

330 493 8 8
FEE =R F]5IE  Due to associates (288) (538) = =

w
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NRIZHE e 19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

FEUH & A R OB R BB E B Movements for impairment provision of amounts due from
N associates are as follows:
rEE /NG|
Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

FET T#ET FET T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

RER 2 8458 Balance at beginning of the year 1,259 2,219 = =

AR Amount written off = (960) = -

RERZEREE Balance at end of the year 1,259 1,259 - =

KREE N T 2 AR T EIET - The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free
B ﬁ%ﬂﬂ—rﬁﬂ/,\fa}a and repayable on demand.

it EZEEIERE 2 ANE BH The summarised financial information of the Group’s

BNE ZIFEERSEn T associates extracted from their management accounts are

as follows:

2009 2008

FET TFHET

HK$’000 HK$°000

BERE Total assets 22,996 25,517

SUEvEE] Total liabilities (18,118) (25,100)

Ygs Revenue 17,296 16,877

FR(EER),SBF (Loss)/Profit for the year 911) 318
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+h - REVEARZER 19.
RZZBEZNFAA=1+H ' £Z

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates as at 30 June 2009 are

kN =2 (U N as follows:
EdmER/ Rl AVe
BRTRAEE EoRfER  AREBGAGERAEDL
Nominal value of Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
2 paid-up registered/ registration ownership interest TEEE
Name issued share capital and operations attributable to the Group  Principal activities
HEENEHERAT BARAAR9,003,2447C # 36 KEEHUERSE
General Jewellery (Shanghai) Paid up capital of RMB9,093,244  Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing
Company Limited* and wholesaling
ENAEEHRARAR" 1,000 EE 1T SR & 50 REBHE
Real Jewellery Limited™ 1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Hong Kong Jewellery manufacturing
* FEBBEEGRITHEE * Not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong or other Grant
BETRITT 2 MBI B A A Thornton International member firms.
28

EERR - ERIURARF 2B
BRANERTENFERAH
BREZFEERAR A BRI
BENTEEFEZIBAHES -
EERRRHERMBERR ZF
BReERRRENTTE

length.

The above table lists the associates of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the share
of associates’ results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the share of net assets of the associates by the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
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“t+REFEEHEEZ  20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
B ENTITIES
rEH
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
rfﬁiﬁ%%‘@ Share of net assets 10,082 1,678
HEZEGIE S Loans to jointly controlled entities
Zim 217,970 141,970
228,052 143,648
B ORERE Less: Provision for impairment (11,670) (11,670)
216,382 131,978
HEE %'Jfgi BEHZ )EMEJES There was no movement in impairment losses in respect of
TEE’\%Z?: ThERZ the loans to jointly controlled entities during the years ended
FRA= + EI ¢¢F1m{£ﬁm 30 June 2009 and 2008.
o
BT HEIEGEE 2 ERTEER The loans to jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
# ﬁi S KREBA E/\\ & H H R interest-free and not repayable within twelve months from
T EAREE the balance sheet date.
rEH
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEU — R E B2 FIE Due from a jointly controlled entity - 120
FET R B BE IR Due to jointly controlled entities = 3)

HEEHIE RS 2 eRTh I
% B MBS EEER o

The balances with jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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s % HEEHERZ 20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

%= (&) ENTITIES (continued)
RZZEZENFAA=TH £& Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entity as at 30
HEEGERZFBET June 2009 are as follows:
MR/ %5
BRTRAEE Riggns ARBEEFSEREIL
Place of incorporation/  Percentage of ownership
£ Nominal value of registration interest attributable FEEK
Name issued share capital and operations to the Group Principal activities
Wealth Plus Developments S0000RAE IR ERR — RBENHES 50 REER
Limited 50,000 ordinary shares British Virgin Islands Investment holding

of US$1 each

BEEtAREEGEMB®RE 2R The aggregate amounts relating to the jointly controlled

SEELEARIESIER 2 @5 entities attributable to the Group that have been included

N in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

2009 2008

FEr FAET

HK$000 HK$°000

EMBNEE Non-current assets 218,013 123,300

MENEE Current assets 3,170 8,748

221,183 132,048

FERBEE Non-current liabilities (206,300) (130,300)

mEaE Current liabilities (4,801) (70)

(211,101) (130,370)

BEHE Net assets 10,082 1,678

WA Income 11,708 3,623

X Expenses (6,236) (5,477)

FNEF, (EE) Profit/(Loss) for the year 5,472 (1,854)
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“+— At EZERMEE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

REE
Group
2009 2008
FET T
HK$’000 HK$°000
ETREAIRE - RAF{E* ¢ Listed equity investments, at fair value*:
B Hong Kong 8,012 9,116
H b b= Elsewhere 731 830
8,743 9,946
FEETREANIEE - =4S ** Unlisted equity investments, at cost** 11,339 11,339
B Provision for impairment (7,108) (7,108)
4,231 4,231
st Total 12,974 14,177
FHRE2HE Market value of listed investments 8,743 9,946
* REE ETHRAKREZ ATFE & The fair value of the Group’s listed equity investments has been
T2EREREE R ZH 2R determined by reference to their quoted bid prices at the balance
BEE - sheet date.
> ZEIE EMRAEE TR AR **  The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less provision
R ERESR - ERzER for impairment as they do not have quoted market prices in an
BIWmPNIERMISRE - EF active market. The directors are of the opinion that the carrying
RE ZERLTREAKREZ amounts of the unlisted equity investments approximate their
FREEREEATEES - fair value.
AR ECeREERBEREZ Movements for impairment provision of available-for-sale
FEnT - financial assets are as follows:
rEE
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
REF 2 8458 Balance at the beginning of the year 7,108 3,243
ERERBEEE Impairment losses recognised = 3,865
RERZERFE Balance at the end of the year 7,108 7,108
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“+ = REIEWEIE 22. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES
REE /N
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Notes  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt TEx AT TET T

HEEER Promissory notes 6) 12,754 14,061 6,701 7,661
Hip KRR Other long term receivables (b) 24,727 24,727 = -
37,481 38,788 6,701 7,661
RERRE Provision for impairment (36,176) (27,727) (5,743) (1,000)
1,305 11,061 958 6,661

PERANEEE - Amount repayable within

BR—EREEL one year classified as

P current assets (1,305) (4,926) (958) (958)
- 6,135 - 5,703
@ RZEZNAFSA=+H (@) Out of the promissory notes of HK$12,754,000
7 #112,754,0007% o ( = as at 30 June 2009 (2008: HK$14,061,000),
T F/\F : 14,061,000/ HK$9,133,000 (2008: HK$10,440,000) is secured,
7T) ZEKR\;ETE}ET ki interest-free and repayable by 15 annual instalments
9,1.33,0007%75(\_??3/\ commencing on 1 October 2001. The remaining
F © 10,440,000 87L) B balance of HK$3,621,000 (2008: HK$3,621,000) is

BEH - REREH-_ZZT
—F+HA—B#ESTRHF
#3g o H£43,621,00087C
(ZZZT)\%F:3,621,000%
T) AEIE - 2B RZAM
—ZEE=F=A+HAE
D =FEE o

unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 13 annual
instalments commencing on 15 March 2003.
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(=)

—_+=-

(b)

REIEWFIE #)

RZZEENFAAA=+
B 25&86 88 F—
MESEEARZ— 8
3,167,000 L ( —ZEZ )\
£:3,167,000/87T) ZIRE
B ZBEHERRE -
EEEREARNZZS—RF
ANA=THESE UE—
1821,560,000/8L( ==
J\£E : 21,560,000/ 7T) 2
B o RINGIASRE %8
BREAT B 6%  EIKIFI A
R-EZNF=ZA=1+—
BESZ  EREE L
B 5 W GRIB 2 THEE A
= E=RAHEAR LUK
BZIHSHEHE=ZZT
EXNA=tRHILEERE
W BN EAREEIR

IR

R GRIRRE R EZ Z

22. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

As at 30 June 2009, the balance represents a
shareholder’s loan of HK$3,167,000 (2008:
HK$3,167,000) advanced to an investee company
which is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on
30 June 2015 and a trade receivable balance of
HK$21,560,000 (2008: HK$21,560,000), which was
interest bearing at 6% per annum, unsecured and
repayable on 31 March 2009. In the view of the
uncertainty of the repayment of the aforesaid trade
receivables, the directors are of the opinion that
the said sum was classified as long term receivables
despite the maturity date of the said sum was expired
during the year ended 30 June 2009.

Movements for impairment provision of long term

™ receivables are as follows:
TEE PN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FEr FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M) 2 8 FE Balance at the beginning of the year 27,727 26,532 1,000 1,000
ERERBEEE Impairment losses recognised 8,449 1,195 4,743 =
RER 2 ERE Balance at the end of the year 36,176 27,727 5,743 1,000
I e < 23. INVENTORIES
rEE
Group
2009 2008
FEr FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
R R Raw materials 143,048 178,917
F R Work in progress 10,640 8,389
Bk Finished goods 141,804 151,267
295,492 338,573
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—+m - ESEWARIE 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

REE

Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 EWGRIA Trade receivables 134,932 195,828
B FEUMGRIE R E B Less: provision for impairment of receivables (27,990) (27,083)
B S EWFIE — 558 Trade receivables — net 106,942 168,745

AEBE—RZRITREH MEE
BEFEZIEE BRREREEF
HRETEFPZERGR - 8%
EFARREER - A&ER
I S EL R (5 08 PR MR R A 5 AR
2] - BHIRERSREEEE
HA#ETTRRE] o

REEH @ REESwRE 2
BriEEEZE S REIRGIBZ BRI D
T

The Group normally applies credit terms to its customers
according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability, repayment history and years of
establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by senior management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as
at the balance sheet date, based on the date of recognition
of the sale, is as follows:

A%
Group

2009 2008

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

0—30H 0 — 30 days 40,389 82,269

31—60H 31 -60 days 40,412 36,343

61—90H 61— 90 days 19,709 17,430

91 HIA E Over 91 days 6,432 32,703

106,942 168,745

HRAEEAZHEF 7 ARt
REM - LB ZRIGAMS -
WEEPEERR

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers
which are internationally dispersed.
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~

—+m - ESEEEE® 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
B 5 IR 2 R E BB AR Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
R E: - BRIFAREERRER recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
AU El Z e B - FEIER satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
T REBESTE S RNIE case the impairment loss is written off against trade
BEME o & 5 MEWGRIE R (E £ receivables directly. The movement in the provision for
= oL N impairment of trade receivables is as follows:
rEE
Group
2009 2008
FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REN 2 EREE Balance at the beginning of the year 27,083 18,077
BRERREEE Impairment losses recognised 3,205 9,006
R Amount written off (2,298) =
RERZ EREE Balance at the end of the year 27,990 27,083
REEER  AEEB 2B FHEW At each balance sheet date, the Group’s trade receivables
TRIE 2 E Bl R B B8 E AR R were individually and collectively determined to be impaired.
& - [ERREE 2 B 5 M. UE s The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
MRS R E AR - customers that were in default or delinquency in payments.
NEFNRGEE R 2B 5 ERFIA The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as
g EA B M AN B R 2 BRI D at the balance sheet date, based on due date and net of
o provision, is as follows:
FEE
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
KRB R ARE Neither past due nor impaired 79,069 144,574
#HI0—30 H 0-30 days past due 14,927 11,899
#HI31—60H 31 - 60 days past due 5,888 7,028
#HI61—90 H 61 — 90 days past due 1,583 1,525
#5391 —180 H 91 - 180 days past due 3,237 2,714
#1H3 181 —360 H 181 - 360 days past due 2,216 677
#HE360 H A Over 360 days past due 22 328
106,942 168,745

AR (E < B 5 IR
BR % W AT B RGN RLER 2 B P
B -

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.
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“+m - BSEWRIEE) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

EREEMREY B 5 R EE
BEEEEHH  RERFER
EE Y EERSRT - RIBAE
S5 SBERA  ASENB
TEHRERE  RALEE R
WEEARE - BABIIRIIE
T2 B - A 5 B3 i
e SEORME B 5 B
(AR -

BHRUGRIABREMEE - Eit
EERREERESHRUGRIALZ
REEEEQFERS

& UAFEIARS

ZEMEE

25.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group did
not hold any collateral in respect of trade receivables that
are past due but not impaired.

Trade receivables are short term in nature and hence the
directors consider the carrying amount of trade receivables
approximates its fair value at the balance sheet date.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

AEE
Group
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B LMRAE S Listed equity securities in Hong Kong,
BhiE at market value 10,324 12,763

AEE EMBRAESFZ AFETD
2ERENGEEA 2 HEHERE
EO

ARAHEFABRS 2 SREEN
RAERnERNELL T A
2INRLEECEBHD

AR FHEFABGEZEREER
FEEF T AMWRERA 2 EME
BRI

The fair value of the Group's listed equity securities has been
determined by reference to their quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the cash flow statement.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other operating expense in the
income statement.

w
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“+RN -HERBEEH

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RENMREFRBREATED ¢

Cash and cash equivalents include the following
components:

REE NN
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET T/BIT TET T/ET

He RIRTT4E Cash and bank balances 45,759 72,984 85 82
52 BAE BT 5K Short term time deposits - 55,884 = =
45,759 128,868 85 82

RITHESRBE ARITFHRA X
REUFBAER -

R-ZZTAFNA=1TH &&
B AR A e BTk e R
ZZENENA=Z+TH  EHEH
FERERRET - WIRBEBRE
HAERITIF AR ENIFE B 1.25% &
5% WEAIS - BHIRm—AE
=@ATE  WHEETKEE
1% —HATF A Z (R R B B BT
TEIEFEUH ©

AEEBBRS RRTEHBEER
FEZRITERUAREE
26,767,000 8L (ZEZNF ¢
10,077,000 70 ) SR1T &84 © A
R¥ETA] B B RE - RIERESIN
& N RASE - SEMMNE
EERE - AEEABBERE
FIREINE 75 2 SRITHETTINE
7}’% o

EER 5 AR ERSEEMA
EEREHEARER - #EHF
R A FEERREELESEAR
Z&o

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group did not have any short
term time deposits. As at 30 June 2008, short term time
deposits were placed with the banks and earned interest at
the respective short term bank deposit rates ranging from
1.25% to 5% per annum. They had a maturity ranging from
one week to three months and were eligible for immediate
cancellation without receiving any interest for the last
deposit period.

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$6,767,000 (2008: HK$10,077,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The directors consider that the fair value of the short term
deposits is not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the short maturity period on its
inception.
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“+t - -EBEMNIE 27. TRADE PAYABLES
REEH - B 5 ENRIEZRKR An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the balance
DT ¢ sheet date is as follows:

2009 2008

FET FEr

HK$'000 HK$'000

0—30H 0 — 30 days 125,589 104,170
31—60H 31 -60 days 19,632 41,260
61—90H 61— 90 days 9,201 21,085
91 BIA E Over 91 days 2,720 33,415
157,142 199,930

“+\ - iTEERMIA 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2009 2008

FEx FEr

HK$’000 HK$’000

RAFEES 4 (HiEE () Forward currency contracts (note (a)) 170 =

@ ZBEHEBSOUANMEXRT
& FHEIR—F -

Note:

(a) The forward currency contracts are denominated in Canadian

dollars and maturity in less than one year.

Ul
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“+ 4 RITER —FIKF 29. BANK LOANS, SECURED

rEE
Group
2009 2008
FET T
HK$’000 HK$°000
RITER— M Bank loans, secured:
AR—FNER Repayable within one year 141,633 90,870
ARE_FEE Repayable in the second year 176,189 6,343
BERE=FEFERF Repayable in the third to fifth years,
ER(BEEEMRT) inclusive 37,808 18,863
ARAFRER Repayable beyond five years 327,266 347,203
682,896 463,279
B BAIAREBMER—  Less: Current portion due within one year
FNEIE Z BIERER included under current liabilities (141,633) (90,870)
BIAIERBAG Non-current portion included under
JERNERER non-current liabilities 541,263 372,409
RZZBZENEASA=TH &% At 30 June 2009, the Group’s banking facilities were
2 SRITE R A T HERIEAF - secured by the followings:
(@) FABELNEZEEET (@) assignment of rental income of an investment
—ERENEHSBRAZ property under assets classified as held for sale;
PR
(b) AEEI|AFREHEZE (b) legal charges over the Group's investment property
EETKREYME 5TH under assets classified as held for sale, certain of the
ELHAEFURERF leasehold land and buildings and property under
W 2 EERR 0 & development; and
(c) ARAMEHZARER - (c) corporate guarantees executed by the Company.
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Z+h - SRITEF—FKM  29. BANK LOANS, SECURED (continued)
(%)
BT RAREEZRITERK Details of the bank loans denominated in HK$ and RMB are
FIEAT as follows:
rEE
Group
2009 2008
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B TEHE Denominated in HK$ 671,496 445,889
AAR¥HE Denominated in RMB 11,400 17,390
682,896 463,279
REBUABTFHEZRITERLZ The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ have
SFENFFIE £0.65%%6.30%( = floating interest rates ranging from 0.65% to 6.30% (2008:
TENF :1.98%F6.22%) ° 1.98% to 6.22%) per annum. The RMB bank loans have
ARBIRITERZEEFHEA fixed interest rates ranging from 6.08% to 7.88% (2008:
6.08% £ 7.88%( =TT )\ & : 7.34% to 8.02%) per annum.
7.34%%8.02%) °
s PEBRRERERM 30. LOANS FROM MINORITY

ERRERR - TR NBA
fﬁﬁ BEFARE+—EARE

il %iﬁ

EERR D %{Hx%% R B
BERENTERE

SHAREHOLDERS

The loans are unsecured, interest-free and not repayable
within the next twelve months from the balance sheet date.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of loans
from minority shareholders approximate their fair value.
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E+— - AAER 31. PROMISSORY NOTE
RZZEZENFLAZ+Z=H" On 22 September 2008, the Group issued promissory
ZRE= &[] Brilliant Top Properties note with principal amount of HK$50,000,000 to Brilliant
Limited([E 77 ) 1T A S5 Top Properties Limited (the “Vendor”) as part of the
50,000,000 7% JT 2 7 H, & #% - consideration for the acquisition of the Precious Group
{E&ULEE Precious Group 2 2F% as detailed in note 39. The promissory note is unsecured,
KEGFEERRME=1 1) o & interest-bearing at rate equal to three months of Hong Kong
REFEEER - HEER=1EA Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) and matures on 21 March
BBRITREREZFEEE - 2011.

KRZE——F=A=+—HEZ|
REH
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REYZ BREFHE Net carrying amount at beginning of the year - =
RO FERBEZBREE  Carrying amount at the date
of initial recognition 50,000 -
B8 Repayments (8,562) =
MBS (sE+) Interest expenses (note 7) 562 -
RELR 7 BREFHE Net carrying amount at end of the year 42,000 -
BRI 42,000,000 70 2 H 7 5R The promissory note with carrying amount of
BER-ZZEZENFNA=1THEE HK$42,000,000 was fully settled subsequent to 30 June
BEAEE o 2009.
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=+ IREHIE 32. DEFERRED TAX
NTAREERBERERZEE The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
BRI (BE) A UER recognised in the balance sheet and the movements during
REFRBEFE LS : the current and prior years:
REE Group
el
IEBIETE EqrLYES TIBRE
Accelerated tax  Revaluation Provision for #@st
depreciation of properties  receivables Total

TAET T TFAET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RIZZ+FE+A—-Bz&ER Balance at 1 July 2007 2,727 60,482 (18,558) 44,651
RIEER GIA), /B2 Deferred taxation arising from

R X TREL 2 BT R decrease in tax rate (credited)/

charged to income statement (156) (3,456) 1,061 (2,551)

NG Charged to income statement

k& for the year 724 6,651 8,607 15,982
RZZZNERA=THEK Balance at 30 June 2008

ZTEN\FLH-Rz&EH and 1 July 2008 3,295 63,677 (8,890) 58,082
RZER R Credited to income statement

A for the year (3,279) (63,677) (327) (67,283)
R-ZZEZNFAA=THZER  Balance at 30 June 2009 16 - (9,217) (9,201)
BELEFIREENRABERAERT Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
MBEERBIHEEBRBEEE legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
TR B AR E R IE TS B AR current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
— TGRS - SR EARHEEE o relate to the same fiscal authority.
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=+ IEEMHIE ) 32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
THSREETABEHEHRE The following amounts, determined after appropriate
E WREGEEEEABERNY offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:
HE :
REE
Group
2009 2008
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$°000
EEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 16 66,972
EETIBEE Deferred tax assets (9,217) (8,890)
(9.201) 58,082

7N £ B H B 7 18 49 93,259,000
B (ZZZ )\ : 83,291,000
WBIT) BB A8 5| B
ERIBZ AR)ARRERTEF] o
ERZERBARIBT A 6
RIESH AR R ERE R - E b r
AAZERIBERBELCHEER
B RENFFIIE 48,136,000 T
—ZTZT )\ : 36,582,000/87T)
BRZE—Fa (BIEZF) 2
R B HREIHER - HAbREATLIE
A] 4R HR A o

ZNN|
RZZBTZAFARA=1TH ' xR

A BB AR B EEITET IR
BE(CEENEFE8)-

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$93,259,000
(2008: HK$83,291,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$48,136,000 (2008: HK$36,582,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2014. Other unused tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Company

As at 30 June 2009, the Company did not have any
significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2008: Nil).
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=+=-%5#EHEZ 33, ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
BE CEY A SALE/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH
EHEZEER ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
Zz&afE SALE
REE
Group
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FIRFHEREZEE Assets classified as held for sale:

wEWE (s t++t(c))  Investment properties (note 17(c)) 838,000 -
HY|SRHEHE 2 BE Liabilities associated with assets

=1 =N classified as held for sale:

HifEMFRIERETER  Other payables and accruals (9,628) =
RZZETHFERA=TH &% As at 30 June 2009, the Group's investment properties
BEoBRARIELE 2 REMEN which have been classified as held for sale are situated in
REE  WARHEERE - Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases.
RZZZENGFEASA=TH £& As at 30 June 2009, the Group's investment properties
EOBEARBELEZREME which have been classified as held for sale with carrying
AR 1H & 838,000,000 /& 7L B E A amount of HK$838,000,000 are pledged to secure general
BT AREE—RIRTEE 2 HEHF banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

(MEE=Z+) »
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34. SHARE CAPITAL

BREE0.1ET
ZEBREE
Number of
ordinary shares of Er
HK$0.1 each Total
FET
HK$'000
SEERRA Authorised:
RZZZNFSA=THK  At30June 2008
“ETNFAA=ZTH and 30 June 2009 3,500,000,000 350,000
BEETRARRA : Issued and fully paid:
RZZZLFLA-HR At 1 July 2007
—ZEZN\FRA=TH and 30 June 2008 279,800,031 27,980
RUEM B R RIEFZITI  Shares issued upon acquisition
(FizE () of subsidiaries (note (a)) 33,030,303 3,303
R-ZZEAFEARA=1H At 30 June 2009 312,830,334 31,283

Hrat -

(a

RZZBEZNFHLAZ=+=8"
ANARIAEAR1.0875 T 2 BE %
733,030,303 IREARE(E 0.1
T2 EBAR - BITEHRG THIE
&R Precious Group Z EZBH K
B (FBHAKE=1T) -

Note:

On 22 September 2008, the Company issued 33,030,303
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the price of HK$1.08 per
share. The issuance of the new shares was used as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of the Precious Group as
detailed in note 39.
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=11 - #E 35. RESERVES
REE Group
REERNEFEREEHE R The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
BEHEE ML EEREE) therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
FE5 o consolidated statement of changes in equity.
E i EATRHE A 7 2 5o Other reserve represents the difference between the
g ﬁ’ﬁ?ZﬁZfﬂ“ﬁEﬁiE’\H&ﬁ%’J & consideration paid for the additional interest in the
REERE ARGEEERER subsidiaries and the minority interest’s share of the assets
ﬁﬁﬂ’x&%{ﬁx%% SFE(EZ BEH and liabilities reflected in the consolidated balance sheet at
BfEZE% - the dates of the acquisitions of the minority interests.
AT Company

ROEER TI2KEE

Share Non- REEA
premium distributable Retained @t
account reserve profits Total

FET FEr FET FEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZLFLA—BZEH Balance at 1 July 2007 158,373 273,606 148,637 580,616
AEEHF Profit for the year = = 19,299 19,299
“ET)\FEFHRE Interim 2008 dividend = - (2,798) (2,798)
“TENFERRASRE Proposed final 2008 dividend = = 4,197 4,197)

RZZZENEAA=ZTHK Balance at 30 June 2008

—ZT\ELA—HZER and 1July 2008 158,373 273,606 160,941 592,920
AEEHF Profit for the year - - 98,673 98,673
2T \ERIMRERE Additional final 2008 dividend - - (496) (496)
“ETNFEFHRE Interim 2009 dividend = - (3,128) (3,128)
ZETNFEEIRKHE Proposed final 2009 dividend

KRS and special dividend = = (96,977) (96,977)
PUYEERTE A AR TR (D Shares issued upon acquisition

(H=E=1n1) of subsidiaries (note 39) 32,370 = = 32,370
RZBEZENEAB=1THZE#H Balance at 30 June 2009 190,743 273,606 159,013 623,362
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=+% - #E 5 35. RESERVES (continued)

Al R FEBIER — L FE AR The non-distributable reserve represents the premium
AR L AREEBSR2.508 arising on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares
JCHIR 2= 0.108 TTRTE & 2 % of the Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in
= 1994,

=+ BAREaE 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

ARARGIBITEREEH B R A
$2{£935,000,000/8T(ZFZ )\
£ 622,000,000 787T) Z FER o
RIBER - HIRTTREEREZE
B AR //\7¥($m§ETT5\%TJ\
ZEM - NEER  BRE

Z%T\éﬁwﬁfkﬁﬂéaa&iémz
B0 - E I LA D B R ER

The Company has provided guarantees amounting to
HK$935 million (2008: HK$622 million) with respect to
bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the guarantees, the
Company would be liable to pay the banks if the banks are
unable to recover the loans. At the balance sheet date, no
provision for the Company’s obligation under the guarantee
contract has been made as the directors considered that it
was not probable that the repayment of the loans would be

BHETZEEELEE - in default.

=+t - EXRKIE 37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

RZBZENFRA=TH  *&%
BB TIIREN 2 EAASE

At 30 June 2009, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments as follows:

REH

Group
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$°000

EHEEESZTEE Contracted but not provided for:
EETRE Construction of buildings = 1,564
BRPYIZE Properties under development 3,414 =
3,414 1,564

RZFBEZENFNA=1+H AR
A EERERNEE(ZZETN
F M)

At 30 June 2009, the Company did not have any capital
commitments (2008: Nil).

144
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=)\ BEHERH 38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(@) EREEA (a) Aslessor
REBAKEHELHM The Group leases certain of its property (note 17)
HEETE (ME+Ht) - under operating lease arrangements, with leases
AR FEHEMEER negotiated for terms ranging from two to five years.
FAE - WEMANBSE None of the leases include contingent rentals.

AHAEE

R-ZZBEZAE A=+ At 30 June 2009, the Group had total future
B - A% E A BEE A minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
& E 2 RIRE WA B K operating leases with its tenants falling due as
TH s (K 48 58 J2 A8 78 HARR 0 follows:
T
REE
Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’'000 HK$°000
—FR Within one year 9,935 31,850
E_FERERF In the second to fifth years,
(BIEERME) inclusive 550 40,474
10,485 72,324
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AETHEE BIAEME
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ERKFRER - HEA—
FE=FTE-

RZTEZAFEANA=T
B - K E AR EEEE
EHE 2 R REMEER
R K 4258 N AR B HABR 40
T

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements.
Leases (including contingent rental) are negotiated at
fixed rate or with reference to level of business and
terms ranging from one to three years.

At 30 June 2009, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

rEE

Group
2009 2008
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 4,857 5,492

BEFEFRF In the second to fifth years,

(BEERME) inclusive 3,856 981
8,713 6,473
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R-ZZEZEN\F+LAWAB - K&
EEAQNBRITERRE RS
A ([FREE]D) KRB R (—HBE
EEZEWEB 2 AR FIALBIE
U R - RABBARRE
215,736,000 7 7T U B Precious
Group Z &P tELA K Precious
Group BNEHZ R ERRER
£ E049182,188,000/8 7T - R (&
HMAEEZATAHARASINTE
VAl

i " & A 8 130,063,000/5

JC »

i. % E R1.088 T 2 #
TEMEF B RFET
33,030,303 iR A4S &) & 18
fi% » & 4£35,673,000/8 7T ;
P4

i. AEBEMERERTASE
50,000,000 7% JT 2 7 i, 2
# o

Precious Group = 2t =23
B ZRXPERNRREIREN
ZEZN\FNATABRZK
RERIAE FIEBRR —ZTT )\
FAA=Z+=HZ=K °

EZ SEK ETRAIETIES
BRAKBEERBERS - X5
HEEBREAQRIZTZENFEN
A=tz -

On 4 July 2008, the Group entered into a conditional
acquisition agreement with Mr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
("Mr. Chan"), executive director of the Company, and the
Vendor, a company wholly owned by Mr. Chan, in relation
to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in the Precious
Group and repayment of an interest-free shareholder’s loan
owing to the Vendor by the Precious Group in the sum of
approximately HK$182,188,000 at a total consideration of
HK$215,736,000. The consideration was satisfied by the
Group to the Vendor by:

a cash consideration of HK$130,063,000;

i allotment and issue of 33,030,303 ordinary shares
of the Company to the Vendor at $1.08 per share,
totalling HK$35,673,000; and

ii.  apromissory note issued by the Group in the principal
amount of HK$50,000,000 to the Vendor.

The Precious Group is principally engaged in properties
development and the transaction was completed on 22
September 2008 upon the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company in the extraordinary general
meeting held on 16 September 2008.

The above transaction constituted a very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction under the Listing
Rules. More details were disclosed in the Company’s circular
dated 27 August 2008.

~
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39.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the Precious Group at the date of acquisition and the

RIARRABRE(ELA T ¢ corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the
acquisition are as follows:
WiBH % 2
BRMHE{E
Acquiree’s
NFE carrying
Fair value amount
FEIT FEIT
HK$000 HK$'000
BEPYEMF+TR) Properties under development (note 15) 383,232 349,672
He RIRTT4E Cash and bank balance 10 10
HibfENZRIE R ESTEM  Other payables and accruals (6) (6)
RITER—FHEH Bank loans, secured (167,500) (167,500)
B EEFE Net assets acquired 215,736 182,176
WRELEZRS Net cash outflow arising
e FER on the acquisition:
EfEERE Cash consideration paid (130,063)
REGE N Cash and bank balances in
R & RRITHERR subsidiaries acquired 10
(130,053)
BENRE Purchase consideration
FEIT
HK$°000
DIRESTNZzEERE Purchase consideration settled in cash 130,063
LAZEIT I 25 2 BEE B Purchase consideration settled in issue of shares 35,673
ABITERREBRS N2 Purchase consideration settled in
BERE issue of promissory note 50,000
BUEEEEFE L AFE  Fair value of net assets acquired (215,736)
GEES Goodwiill -
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Precious GroupRR—ZZT/\F 1,
A+ -—HE-_ZTZTAF/A
=R RN SE g g
K A1 5 Bl 4% 164,000 78 7T 12 49
132,000 7T © il iE F BN =
TEN\FLH—HE %K B A&
(B 2N 4F & U 2 % g ) I £ ] S5
&) » JhER Precious Group UL
BE B TH AR B A AUk aS sl s
FTEl - ZEEEEREHRFAR
7 WIFHRMEESEERS
TEENFLA—HBHEXZER
T ANEEEREES 2 WKk
FE - D TBHERRRFERZIE

Al e

RBE-ZT/\FRA=THL
FREIEKBHBEAR -

(continued)

The Precious Group contributed revenue of HK$164,000
and profit of approximately HK$132,000 to the Group for
the period from 22 September 2008 to 30 June 2009. If
the acquisition had been completed on 1 July 2008, there
would be no change to the Group'’s revenue and profit for
the year as the Precious Group did not derive any revenue or
profit before the acquisition. These pro forma information
are for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 July 2008, nor are they intended to be a
projection of future results.

There was no acquisition of subsidiaries during the year
ended 30 June 2008.

O



Notes to Financial Statements m B1 78R & /2t

For the year ended 30 June 2009
HE_ZTZNFRA=THIEFE

(=)

M+ - HEMEB AR 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

HE_TTNFAAA=THLLF
B AEBENRSRE1ETR
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EHEMBRARARHERZEE

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group disposed
of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Honest Joy Limited and
its subsidiary, Poly Jade Development Limited, to an
independent third party, at a cash consideration of HK$1.

The net assets of the disposed subsidiaries at the date of

FEMT disposal were as follows:
FET
HKS$’000

BHEEEFE : Net assets disposed of:

R Cash balances 2,000
TRIBE Provision for tax (1,776)
DET RS Minority interests (201)
AEEREE HEEEFE The Group's share of net assets disposed of 23
HERBAREE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (23)

BTN ASMHRE -

RE

Consideration satisfied by:
Cash -

REEHBARZHS R
o REFEA
T

The analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

FET
HK$000
EEERENRE Cash consideration received =
BEHERE L Cash balances disposed of (2,000)
FHEWB AR ZIRE K Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
RESFRE 2 Mt F5E in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries (2,000)
REBEE=ZTZTN\F<A There was no disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 30 June 2008.
= B I FE I S
BAR -
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BRI wmEEME D HEE 2 E In addition to those related party transactions disclosed

EARHN  REERFEAE RS elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year, the

BETR S e Group had the following related party transactions.

@ X194,849,0008 T (=TT (@ Subcontracting fees of HK$4,849,000 (2008:
N\ :6,521,000/87L) HE HK$6,521,000) paid to certain associates. The
ERTETHERAR 28 subcontracting fees are mutually negotiated between
B AR & (B B 2 A R 1R the Group and the associates.

UL BERGIERK ©

by FREHZAQAHEE (b)  Sales of goods to associates of HK$151,000 (2008:
151,000 L (=T )\ F : HK$409,000) were made during the year. The terms
409,000/ 7T ) ° & B A are mutually negotiated between the Group and the
SEEBE N R R ERE associates.

B o

(0 WiEg—HEERQ A WE (0 No management fee income (2008: HK$120,000)
EREBWA(ZEZNE : were received from an associate. The management
120,000 7T) - BB U fee income was mutually negotiated between the
A F 7 £ (B BB 2 N B AR Group and the associate.

PEREREERK ©

(d ZAFEH(—HEBEBRLE (d) Interest expenses of HK$562,000 (2008: Nil) paid to
EEHRBEZRA)ZFE the Vendor, a company wholly owned by Mr. Chan.
562,000 8T (=ZEF The interest expenses are charged at three months of
N |&) - FIERSE= HIBOR as detailed in note 31.

@A B BRITRAZEF S
B - SIEERITFT=— -

(e)  UkE&Precious Group 2 =15 (e)  The acquisition of the Precious Group as detailed in
A= T- note 39.

f) FEEEAERF (f)  Compensation of key management personnel
ABERAFSZ 2EE Included in employee benefit expenses are key
ERABRABETIE management personnel compensation and comprises
Bl : the following categories:

2009 2008

FET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

EEEEER Short term employee benefits 20,051 10,029
BB 122 A Post-employment benefits 288 306
20,339 10,335
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(a)

Wp R =+ FEa o IR
Precious Group Z 280 B E
R {8 35,673,00078 7T i iB
AR 1.0878 7T 2 (B 53
733,030,303 f% AN A A %7
LB o

M=+ uaFal - W
B8 Precious Group Z 3%
BEREBBEITASE
50,000,000 % JT 2 % %, =
BET o

B %5 JE by & 3 B
R RBUR

AEENTIESHTABERA

®BE - REIEKFRE -

R

ERER BEHRUHIEH
MR RERREEFRE
BHRMNBIA - HtbEMFIAR
FEETEM ~ I|RTTER - BB A
Al BE AR MAREZENER
B TESMITARARE
% ZE oM I A EEARRM
AR - BZEeR T RGN
R\ B R 7 < e O ER R B R
TX - EEEeEH RERLF
R - LARECRBEERS N B Rt e

178

Al et i
= 18 bt ©

42,

43,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT

The Group has the following major non-cash transaction:

(@) As detailed in note 39, part of the purchase
consideration of HK$35,673,000 in respect of the
acquisition of the Precious Group was satisfied by the
issue of 33,030,303 new ordinary shares at HK$1.08
each of the Company.

(b) As detailed in note 39, part of the purchase
consideration in respect of the acquisition of
the Precious Group was satisfied by the issue of
a promissory note with a principal amount of
HK$50,000,000.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, long term receivables, loans to jointly
controlled entities, trade receivables, other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank loans, balance with subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, derivative financial
instruments and promissory note. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRBUK#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
hiEE Rk Market risk
0 IMNEREE (i) Foreign currency risk

REE Group

SN R 0% B R SIMEE [ =R
ZEPEHREMIAZAR
FEIRKRAESREHR
KBk AEETE
ERE  ZERPBEARE
REXT RBAIXHND
BABTT - 27T~ BER
AREIENGEE - W&
MAARBINEZERE
EN oA EAKIMNER
@ MARBREZER
SEBZHBERENERQ
BlZEEEH - AEEZ
SNERBREBRRBEETE
BMTHE BRAHLEEZ
ERMEE  RHERN
B EBHRWHIE Be
RS EE  BHEMNK
BRITESRTIE - T3
XL BT RE - ME
ARTLRIFFRBERRIIE
FA - AREEL EINE L
HEE - BEEESSE
EERRSMNERRR

TERBARZZTZTNFR
—EENFRA=1THK
AEBEXKERARYEE
BONZHEMERIIEZE
BeRMEEKRARE -

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
the United Kingdom and the Mainland China with
most of the transactions denominated and settled in
HK$, United States dollars (“US$"”), British Pounds
and RMB respectively. No foreign currency risk has
been identified for the financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in RMB, which is the functional
currencies of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
to which these transactions relate. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arises from
certain financial instruments including available-for-
sale financial assets, long term receivables, trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables
and derivative financial instruments which are
denominated in US$, Euro, British Pounds, Canadian
Dollars and Philippines Pesos. During the years, the
Group did not have foreign currency hedging policy
but the management continuously monitor the
foreign exchange exposure.

The following table summarises the Group’s major
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group companies as at 30 June 2009 and
2008.

w
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m+=-BFEEKEEIER 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

ERBER &) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
g E M (42) Market risk (continued)

() SMNERER (&)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (continued)

REER (4Z) Group (continued)
RFE TR
Expressed in HK$'000

FESB
EV 59z ®EE  NERT BE
British ~ Canadian Philippines
us$ Euro Pounds dollars Pesos

ZETHAERA=TH  At30June 2009
AREZEHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 4,231 = = = 731
R AR Long term receivables - - - 1,305 -
B S EWKFIE Trade receivables 88,622 110 15,183 - -
BekBeEH Cash and cash equivalents 16,193 1,416 9,346 144 -
BHENFE Trade payables (156,996) = (132) = =
TEEmTA Derivative financial instruments = = = (170) =
ZEFRER Overall net exposure (47,950) 1,526 24,397 1,279 731

ATFATIIR
Expressed in HK$'000

FEE
ET BT HEE NEART FR
British ~ Canadian  Philippines
us$ Euro Pounds dollars Pesos

“ZZ\ERA=TH  At30June 2008
AREZEHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 4,231 = = = 830
REEW A Long term receivables 3,621 = = 7,440 =
B S EHIE Trade receivables 152,319 1,214 2,309 = -
BekB2EH Cash and cash equivalents 88,938 1,290 7,078 123 =
B S ENTIE Trade payables (198,070) = (1,384) = =
B Rk Overall net exposure 51,039 2,504 8,003 7,563 830
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BRRBUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Gk (&) Market risk (continued)
) SMEEE (E) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
REE (&) Group (continued)
BRETTE B THESE - R As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect
SEEFETABTZ any significant movements in the US$/HK$ exchange
EXRRIgELEFEMER rates. No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group's
""""" HE) o EERE HEH financial assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is
BARAEBUETIEZS disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such sensitivity
BB E R B EE W U analysis does not give additional value in view of
Eot BARENGEE insignificant movement in the US$/HK$ exchange
ETLHABTL 2 EXEEHT rates as at balance sheet date. The following table
A BMZEFRE DI indicates the approximate change in the Group's
EIRMEEINMEE - TRE profit for the year and equity in response to
TAREERNEEHAGE reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
KRR 2 ERNEEA] R rates to which the Group has significant exposure at
HE) > TS AEBZF the balance sheet date.
A A R R 2 R 2 B AY
) o
2009 2008
IMEER G|\ e 2
t#/ s 4
(TF%) HER (FF%) HER
Increase/ wAZ Increase/ AL
(Decrease) 7 (Decrease) 7%
in foreign  Effect on in foreign  Effect on
exchange profit for #E#  exchange  profit for gy
rates  the year Equity rates  the year Equity
FET FET FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
R Euro +5% 76 76 +5% 125 125
-5% (76) (76) -5% (125) (125)
oz British Pounds +5% 1,220 1,220 +5% 400 400
-5% (1,220) (1,220) -5% (400) (400)
MERT Canadian dollars ~ +5% 64 64 +5% 378 378
-5% (64) (64) 5% (378) (378)
JFREERR Philippines Pesos ~ +5% - 37 +5% - 42
-5% - (37) -5% - (42)

(5]
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRER ®) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
miZERE (&) Market risk (continued)
() SMNEEE (E) (i)  Foreign currency risk (continued)
P /N Company
ARREEZEEZBHEUANE The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk
AT 25 2 KB EWFRIE primarily through its long term receivables which are
&S INE R o T RF8 denominated in Canadian dollars. The following table
TARFIRGEERRBSE indicates the approximate change in the Company’s
N Z[TE’J/\@—J profit for the year and equity in response to
BE) ARESARRZE reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
A A R R 5 L ER 2 B AY rates to which the Company has significant exposure
BE) o at the balance sheet date.
2009 2008
INEER G|\ E 2
t#/ R/
(TF%) HER (TF%) HER
Increase/ A Z Increase/ A2
(Decrease) g (Decrease) o]
in foreign  Effect on in foreign  Effect on
exchange profit for ¥ exchange  profit for Gy
rates  the year Equity rates  the year Equity
FET FET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
MERTT Canadian dollars +5% 48 48 +5% 333 333
-5% (48) (48) -5% (333) (333)

BRED IR RINEE
EREEA LRSS ME
E o MmArAEMEE TR

JIH 2 BB E IR B4
SNE IZTE"HHWZ\T 18
if,ﬁi” AR A

AEBEBBEFEIAR—
HESTERIMNERR 2K
B WRBZFERER -

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the balance sheet dates and that all other
variables remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRBUK#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
hiZEME (&) Market risk (continued)
(i)  RAEEE (i) Equity price risk

AR AN (B 48 B B B 1T 45 (B 4%
B ) (F) = K HNE e R 2 B)
BRON BT EAFE
gARKRBEEREHEKE
ZBERER AEEFER
HERBERIEAFEGFT AR
mARSK AT E 2 EmA
N A = W N
Rk EELBBER
B B[R R b 8 0 52 1%
BHEEERE LSRR I
1SR ERE BB H
[N S E i : Ll
mERERE

R-ZZETAFAA=+
A - (4B A £ (T
B)10% T FTA o B 4

E RTE

- AEBTFARZEF
1&g, Cmk D) &
1,032,000 (==&
T)\EFE 3mSR
) #91,276,00078
JC) e WIHEZEBRR
BAFEABER
ZEMEEEH
ES G

- HBARIAREERZA]
HEEZSRMEEY
EHRATE 2 AF
pdi NS 153
M) g, Crl 4>)
#874,000/8 L (=&
= )\ 4F : 995,000%
JT) °

Equity price risk related to the risk that the fair values
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market price (other
than changes in interest rate and foreign exchange
rate). The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities
which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, or available-for-sale. The board of directors
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arises. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk.

At 30 June 20009, if equity prices had increased/
(decreased) by 10% and all other variables were held
constant:

- the Group's profit for the year would increase/
(decrease) by approximately HK$1,032,000
(2008: increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$1,276,000). This is mainly due to the
changes in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and

- the Group’s equity other than retained profits
would increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$874,000 (2008: HK$995,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of listed equity
investments included in the Group’s available-
for-sale financial assets.

~
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ZAZERE -

REEBEBEFELAR—
HETEERAERRAR
ZBUR  WRBZEBGR
B o

FIF

M) 2 [ Bz B2 T 355 1) K 2 B
BHEHMTERAFELR
enELBKEZRARE
o AEBAZ ZMER
¥ ERBRITEE &
HER  RBHRITEE
REREBEINERZHE
AEEERZRERENE
[ZL B o PSR M AR (B AR R
TEEREAREE 2 F=
R B E BIR o Bl 7 Bt 5
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K BEEESE
MR WA ER
EEEPERN KRR
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TREWM A FIRET - F
MR TR 1805 7 & AR & & A
$HIR 100K (- 2F
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B HREE - W HRIEAR
EENSELEHIFA 2R
1I8REE - ;#E%Em.%féf
A ERFTE o FTE EAth
BEEIF T o

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Equity price risk (continued)

This sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the price change had occurred at the balance
sheet dates and has been applied to the Group's
investment on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group is exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank borrowings and promissory note. Majority
of the bank borrowings and the promissory note are
arranged at variable rates which expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rates and
repayment terms of the bank borrowings and the
promissory note outstanding at year end dates are
disclosed in notes 29 and 31 respectively.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arises.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
profit after tax for the year and retained earnings to a
change in interest rates of +100 basis point and -100
basis point (2008: +100 basis point and -100 basis
point) with effect from the beginning of the year. The
calculations are based on the Group's bank balances,
interest bearing bank borrowings and promissory
note held at each balance sheet date. All other
variables are held constant.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

2009 2008
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
e == _EF 100 E 2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
ZZZ\F : 100£F)  (2008: 100 basis point) higher
A R4 R A Net profit for the year decrease by (5,116) (3,368)
fisd 2 P& 100 BB If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZZ)\4F : 100EE)  (2008: 100 basis point) lower
S AAEFIE N Net profit for the year increase by 5,116 3,368

AEBBBREFEUR—BEET
EEE?IJTH 8 2 R WA A&

FEER

EFERRESRIAZRSHT
AEBRBERITAZ RRETH
Bff SAKERIMBELRZ
R - 32 B E TR aEE B REE
SEERMNEEREMEER
TERENEE - AIXEEREAR
AZEERRNGAEERER
RARRZ BERBERMIIZS
BEENKREEARR - AREEE
Rk SHREREETEERR
REREBOR - WERHREERBER
FLE A B U HE R EUGRIRE R
E oSN ARERSEERR
A B IRIE N E WA - ARERE
LRI B SRt E R SR E S
B At EFEERA/AKER
BRE S R EE SRR o

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been followed
by the Group since prior year are considered to be effective.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instruments and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's and the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated and
the Company’s balance sheets. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the senior management compiles the credit and
risk management policies, to approve credit limits and to
determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount for each individual account receivables at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the board of directors considers that the Group'’s credit risk
is effectively controlled and significantly reduced.

O
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43,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Company’'s maximum exposure to credit risk is
primarily attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries,
other receivables and contingent liabilities in relation to the
financial guarantee contracts as detailed in note 36 to the
financial statements.

The Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. Hence, it has no significant
concentration of credit risk by a single debtor.

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as cash is
deposited in banks of high credit rating.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’ exposure
to credit risk arising from long term and trade receivables
are disclosed in notes 22 and 24 to the financial statements
respectively.

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will not able
to meet its obligation associated with its financial liabilities.
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows in the short and long term. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
managing liquidity risk.
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m+= -B#EKEIEB 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRRBUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
mEE SR (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
REHER - NEBIZE DR The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
ENHEY Jﬁé,%;ﬁ TRBEN as at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted
EEARAEAT ¢ undiscounted payments, was as follows:
REE Group
BRRAE

Hemeg 1FR 1FUE 250 L
4m REREER GOWE BORSE
Total Within1 Morethan  More than

fEHEE  contractual year 1yearbut 2 yearsbut SELE
Carrying undiscounted oron less than less than ~ More than
amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZEZNFEARB=TH Asat30June 2009

EUT Trade payables 157,142 157,142 157,142 - - =
HitENFER Other payables
[t ER and accruals 62,883 62,883 62,883 = = -
(TAEemIA Derivative finandial
instruments 170 170 170 - - -
FEHE R AR Due to associates 288 288 288 = = =
RTER-HER Bank loans, secured 682,896 742,587 149,919 183,713 45,247 363,708
DPERRER Loans from minority
shareholders 1,125 1,125 - 1,125 - -
ERRIE Promissory note 42,000 42,260 - 42,260 - -

946,504 1,006,455 370,402 227,098 45,247 363,708
Bp|AREREZEE  Liabilities associated
B8 with assets classified
as held for sale:
HitEHUERERZRA  Other payables
and accruals 9,628 9,628 9,628 - - -

956,132 1,016,083 380,030 227,098 45,247 363,708
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

REH (Z) Group (continued)
BNATE
Rene 1ERK 1EM £ 26N
BB REREE  ESNE BORSE
Total Within 1 More than ~ More than
BRE{E  contractual year  Tyearbut 2 yearsbut S E
Carrying undiscounted oron less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
FET FET FET FAT FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZ\FRA=1TH Asat30June 2008
BHRAFE Trade payables 199,930 199,930 199,930 - = -
HiEAFER Other payables
fEsER and accruals 46,170 46,170 46,170 - - -
FEEERARIHIR Due to associates 538 538 538 - - -
FEERZEFEERE  Due tojointly
controlled entities 3 3 3 - - -
RTEN-FER Bank loans, secured 463,279 674,461 100,137 15,464 45317 513,543
DERRER Loans from minority
shareholders 1,125 1,125 - 1,125 - -
711,045 922,227 346,778 16,589 45,317 513,543
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m+=- B # E by & 18 B 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRBUK#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REE S B (Z) Liquidity risk (continued)
IRAF] Company
BRRITR

BEhg 1ERD 1EUE 2P E
4w REREE  BOME BORSE
Total Within1 Morethan  More than

SREE  contractual year 1yearbut 2 yearsbut SENE
Carrying undiscounted oron less than less than  More than
amount  cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

TET TET TE7 TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

RZEZNERA=1H Asat30June 2009
HitENFERETER  Other payables
and accruals 879 879 879 - - -

RZBBENEARB=1H Asat30June 2008
HitENFERIETBR  Other payables

and accruals 300 300 300 = = -
NEE Fair values
N-EBEENFR_EZENFNH All financial instruments are carried at amount not
=1+H " FrEESRITAEY AR materially different from their fair values as at 30 June 2009
EZAFETESKER S8 and 2008.

N
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m+m- LEAN S EE 44
MEEREER

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

=2

REB RAR RN EE B RN
CHEE KB BENREERIZMN
TH% - 22 Mi5E3.14%3.20 4
BARS R T B D Em

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities as recognised at balance sheet
dates may be categorised as follows. See notes 3.14 and
TR 3.20 for explanations about how the category of financial

LHIBEEET= © instruments affects their subsequent measurement.
REE P N/NE|
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FAET FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
FRBEE Non-current assets
AHEEr SRIEBEE Available-for-sale
financial assets 12,974 14,177 - -
ER KW GRIE Loans and receivables:
— RHAEWGRIE — Long term receivables = 6,135 = 5,703
— BT HE I EE — Loans to jointly
2B controlled entities 206,300 130,300 = =
NI B — Due from subsidiaries = - 344394 328,372
219,274 150,612 344,394 334,075
RBEE Current assets
AR EFAERZZ Financial assets at fair value
TEEE through profit or loss 10,324 12,763 - =
B K EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
—E S EKFIE — Trade receivables 106,942 168,745 = =
— H At e 508 — Other receivables 11,941 12,637 = 12
—RAEWGRIEZ — Current portion of
RIERER 5> long term receivables 1,305 4,926 958 958
NG ERE] — Due from subsidiaries = = 134,525 47,986
— FEURESE & A B 5RIE — Due from associates 330 493 8 8
— Y —FEIHRIZEHIEEE - Due from a jointly
KIA controlled entity - 120 -~ =
—-BeMReEH — Cash and cash
equivalents 45,759 128,868 85 82
176,601 328,552 135,576 49,046
395,875 479,164 479,970 383,121
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m+-pg - %;;,‘gujﬁ%sﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ 44. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

ERBaEHME AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(%) (continued)
rEE KA F]
Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

FET FET FET FEr
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

cRas Financial liabilities
REEE Current liabilities
PABESERX ANGT 22 Financial liabilities measured

CHREE: at amortised cost:
—BSENHE — Trade payables (157,142)  (199,930) = =
—HEtENZUEREER - Other payables and accruals  (62,883) (46,170) (879) (300)
— B &R R F0A — Due to associates (288) (538) = =
— P LRI ~ Due to jointly controlled

ERE entities = 3) = =

—RITER—FEH - Bank loans, secured (141,633) (90,870) = =

LAAFERE A8 2 £ B A E © Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss:

—{TESRTA — Derivative financial instruments  (170) = = -
HE| ARFEHEC BE Liabilities associated with assets
BHAzaE: classified as held for sale:
—Hip BN REETER - Other payables and accruals (9,628) - = -
(371,744) (337,511) (879) (300)
FREERE Non-current liabilities
IABESERN A GTE 2 Financial liabilities measured
SHEE at amortised cost;
—PEREEK — Loans from minority
shareholders (1,125) (1,125) - -
—EHER — Promissory note (42,000) = = =
—RTER—GEH — Bank loans, secured (541,263)  (372,409) = -
(584,388) (373,534) - -
(956,132) (711,045) (879) (300)
M+ - EAER 45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AEBEAEENHERIZ A% The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
FREZEETRRERLE is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
ABYEFEEEMERREEESRZA healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
1t o shareholders value.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current and previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
less the sum of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group aims to maintain the
gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the directors are of
the opinion that the Group’s gearing ratio was maintained
at reasonable level at the balance sheet dates. The gearing
ratios as at the balance sheet date were as follows:

BNEEABHRIT :
REE
Group
2009 2008
FET FEIT
HK$'000 HK$°000
RBaE Current liabilities
RITER — H KT Bank loans, secured 141,633 90,870

FREEE Non-current liabilities

DVHIRREK Loans from minority shareholders 1,125 1,125
RITER—FIRA Bank loans, secured 541,263 372,409
HHRIR Promissory note 42,000 =
B Total debts 726,021 464,404
B ReRREERE Less: Cash and cash equivalents (45,759) (128,868)
HEE Net debts 680,262 335,536
Hers 4B TE Total equity 1,045,901 878,573
EEBEEFEEE Total equity and net debts 1,726,163 1,214,109
ERB B E Gearing ratio 39.4% 27.6%
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L EA PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
RZEZNFAA=TH as at 30 June 2009
REWE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEEELER
Attributable
E J2E= A interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
E BB 518 523, 525, 527 5% [HES A 100%
[EFE A K E Commercial Medium

The whole block of

Continental Diamond Plaza
No. 523, 525, 527 Hennessy Road
Hong Kong
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the respective published audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out as below. The figures for the
year ended 30 June 2005 have been restated as a result of adoption
of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. This summary does

—Ef5 o not form part of the audited financial statements.
E ¥ RESULTS
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51))
(as restated)
gk Revenue 1,189,622 1,497,682 1,632,180 1,711,670 1,243,110
RS An&E R Profit before income tax 71,142 101,073 259,794 71,379 106,137
FisHEe,/ (Fx) Income tax credit/(expense) 64,807 (13,985) (52,898) (16,324) (21,951)
FRHDHRREIERAIEF  Profit before minority interest 135,949 87,088 206,896 55,055 84,186
DR RS Minority interests (10) (3,611) (92,910) (4,518) (34,119)
ARAEREFBA Net profit attributable to equity
FE{EEE R holders of the Company 135,939 83,477 113,986 50,537 50,067
BEE - ABERV BT ERERE ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY
INTERESTS
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
FHET FET FET FET FET
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(571)
(as restated)
BELE Total assets 2,013,672 1,673,773 1,683,031 1,365,781 1,385,891
BfEEHE Total liabilities (967,771) (795,200) (882,841) (620,872) (691,809)
DR TR Minority interests (1,274) (1,865) (1,208) (42,828) (38,310)
1,044,627 876,708 798,982 702,081 655,772
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